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!Attachment 1: WATS Organisational Chart! 

West Auckland Trust Services Organisational Chart! 

Under section 7(2)(f)(il) and the 
Privacy Act 1993, the names of 
some persons and positions have 
been redacted to ensure they are 
not idenitfiable so as to protect 
thier privacy. 
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Attachment 2.1: WATS Audited Financial Statement - 2014 

West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 

Redactions under section 7(2)(h) and 0) of LGOIMA: 
Protection of commercial Information to enable to 
conduct of commercial activity without prejudice and to 
ensure thal official information Is not used for lmpropsr 
gain or advantage. 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Directors' Report 

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report of West Auckland Trust Services Ltd, 
incorporating the financial statements and the auditor's report, for the year ended 31 March 2014. 

The Directors of the Company authorised these financial statements presented on pages 5 to 21 for issue on 
June 26th 2014. 

For and on behalf of the Board. 

Tim Livingstone 
Director 

June 26th 2014 June 26th 2014 

2 
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Grant Thornton 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Audit 

Grant Thornton Nw Zea!and 
Audit Paruiership 
t4, Grant ToorntOll House 
152 Fanshawe Slreel 
P08ox1961 
Auckland 1140 

T +64 (0)9 306 2570 
F +64 (0)9 309 4892 

To the readers of West Auckland Trust Services Llmlted's financial statements for 
the year ended 31 March 2014 

The Auditor-General is the auditor of\'Vest Auckland Trust Sct-yices Limited (the Company). The 
Auditor-General has appointed me, Alec Flood, using the stiff and resources of Gtant Thornton, to 
cany out the audit of the financial statements of the Company, on her behalf. 

We have audited the financilli statements of the Compa11y on pages 5 to 21, that comprise the 
statement of financial positio11 as at 31 March 2014, the statement of compl"ehensive income and 
statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date and the notes to the financial statements 
that include accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Opinion 

In our opinion the financial statements of the Company on pages 5 to 21: 

• comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and 

• give a 'true and fail" view of the Company's: 

financial positio11 as at 31 :Mard1 2014; and 

financial perform1tnce for the ye1tr ended on that date. 

Out audit was completed on 26 June 2014, This is the date at which our opinion is expressed. 

TI1e basis of our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of the 
Dii'ectors and our responsibilities, and we explain our independence. 

Basis of opinion 
\"'{le carried out our audit in accordance with the Auclito1"-Genc1-al's Auditing Standards, which 
incorporate the International Standards 011 Auditing (New Zealand). Those standards require tlut we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and carry out our audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial stateme11ts are free from material misstatement. 

:Material misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts and disclosures that, in our judgement, 
are likely to influence readcts' overall understanding of the fuIBncial statements. If we had found 
material misstatements thatwete not corL:ected, we would ha,,e referred to them in our opinion. 

An audit involves caJ'.LY11t1g out procedures to obrain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including our 
nssessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those tisk assessments, we consider internal control tclevant to the preparation of the 
Company's financial statements that ghre a ttue and fak view of the matters to whicl1 they relate. \Ve 
consider internal control in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumst1mces, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinio11 on the effectiveness of the Company's internal 
control. 

Chatt&r-ad Accountants 
MarrbetofGtru$l ThoMloo: l111eftll!kiontt Ud 
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Grant Thornton 

An audit also involves evaluating: 

• the appropriateness of accounting policies used and whether they have been consistently 
applied; 

• the reasonableness of the significant accounting estimates and judgements made by the 
Directors; 

• the adequacy of all disclosures in the financial statements; and 

• the overall presentatio11 of the financial statements. 

\Xie did not examine eveq transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of the financial 
statements . Also we did not evaluate the security and controls over the electronic publication of the 
financial statements . 

We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required and we believe we have 
obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of the Directors 
The Directors are responsible for preparing financial statements that: 

• comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and 

• give a true and fair view of the Company's financial position and financial performance. 

The Directors ate also responsib le for such interna l contro l as they determine is necessaq to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. The Directors are also responsible for the publication of the financial statements, whetl1er in 
printed or electronic form. 

The Directors' responsibilities arise from tl1e Financial Reporting Act 2013. 

Responsibilities of the Auditor 
\Xie are responsible for expressing an independent opinion on the financial statements and reporting 
that opinion to you based on our audit. 

Our respons ibility arises from section 15 of the Public Audit Act 200'1. 

Independence 
\Vhen catqing out the audit, we followed the independence requirements of the Auditor-Ge neral, 
which incorporate the independence requirements of the Externa l Reporting Board. 

Grant Thornton also provides tax compliance services to the Company . 

Alec Flood 
Grant Thornton 
On behalf of the Auditor-General 
Auckland , N ew Zea land 

Chartued Acc:ounttnls 
Uembo1 OI GfMI Thotnlon .-iternatonal Ud 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 

2014 2013 

Notes $'000 $'000 

Revenue 4 62,938 63,748 

Cost of sales of goods and services 57,040 58,103 

Gross profit 5,898 5,645 

Other income 5 1,125 115 

Total income 7,023 5,760 

Less expenses 

Distribution 6 2,161 2,127 

Administration 6 4,862 3,633 

Total expenses 7,023 5,760 

Profit/ (loss) before income tax {O) (0) 

Income tax expanse 7 4 6 

Profit/ (loss) after income tax (4) (6} 

Other comprehensive income 

Total comprehensive Income I {loss} {4! (6) 

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying 

notes. 

5 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Statement of Financial Position 
As at 31 March 2014 

2014 2013 
Notes $'000 $'000 

Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 8 4,287 3,421 
Trade and other receivables 9 1,063 2,743 
Inventories 10 3,155 3,237 
Income tax receivable 5 33 
Total current assets 8,510 9,434 

Non current assets 
Property, plant and equipment 11 84 108 
Deferred tax asset 14 104 78 
Intangible assets 12 187 34 
Total non current assets 375 220 

Total assets 8,885 9,654 

Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables 13 5,773 6,538 
Total current liabilities 5,773 6,538 

Term liabilities 
Shareholder Loans 20 3,000 3,000 
Total term liabilities 3,000 3,000 

Total liabilities 8,773 9,538 

Net assets 112 116 

Equity 
Share Capital 21 
Retained earnings 15 112 116 

Total equity 112 116 

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying 
notes. 

6 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 

1he above Statement of Changes h Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

7 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 

1. General information 

West Auckland Trust Services Limited (the Company) is a limited liability Company registered under the Companies Act 
1993. The Company is Incorporated and domiciled in New Zealand. 

The Board of the Company do not have the power to amend these financial statements once issued. 

The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Company are procurement, warehousing, distribution and 
management ~ervlces for Waltakere and Portage Licensing Trusts. 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. 

(a) Basis of preparation 
The financial statements have bean prepared In accordance with New Zealand Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (NZ 
GAAP). They comply with New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS), and other 
applicable New Zealand Financial Reporting Standards as appropriate for profit orientated entities that qualify for and apply 
differential reporting concessions. 

The Company has adopted the External Reporting Board Standards A1 "Accounting Standards Framework (For-profit 
Entities Update)" ("XRB A1"). For the purposes of complying with GAAP, the Company Is eligible to apply Tier 3 For-profit 
Accounting Standards (New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards - Differential Reporting ("NZ 
IFRS Diff Rep")) on the basis that It does not have public accountability and Its owners are members of the entity's 
governing body. The Company has elected to report In accordance with NZ IFRS - Dlff Rep and has applied all differential 
reporting concessions available to It except for NZ IAS 12 Income Taxes with which ii has complied with fully and NZ IAS 18 
which permits qualifying entities to recognise revenue and expenses on a GST Inclusive basis. 

Statutory base 
These financial statements have been presented In accordance with the Companies Act 1993 and Financial Reporting Act 
1993. 

Historical cost convention 
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. 

(b) Functional and presentation currency 
Items Included In the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency or the primary economic 
environment In which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The financial statements are presented In New Zealand 
dollars, which Is the Company's functional and presentation currency. The company does not transact in foreign currencies. 

All values ere rounded ot the nearest thousand dollars ($000) unless otherwise stated. 

8 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

(c) Revenue recognition 
Revenue comprises the falr value for the sale of goods and services, net of Goods and Services Tax. Revenue is 
recognised as follows: 

{I) Sale of goods 
Sales of goods are recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the customer and colleclibllily of 
lhe related receivables Is reasonably assured. 

{if) Interest income 
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. 

(iii) Management services 
Management services income ls recognised at the time the services are provided. 

{d} Income tax 
The Income tax expense or revenue ror the period is !he total of the current period's taxable Income based on the income 
taK rate adjusted for any prior years' under/over provisions, and movements in the deferred tax balance except where the 
movement In deferred tax Is attributable lo a movement In reserves. 

Movements In deferred lax are attributable to temporary differences between lhe tax base of assets and Uabililles and their 
carrying amounts Jn the financial statements and any unused la)( losses. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised 
for temporary differences at !he tax rates expected to apply when the assets are recovered or liabilltles are setlled, based on 
those lax rates which are enacted or subs!antiltely enacted al balance data. An exception is made for certain temporary 
differences arising from !he initial recognition of an asset or a liabiUly. No deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in 
relallon lo these temporary differences If they arose In a transaction, other than a business combination, Iha! al the time of 
the transaction did not affect either accounting profit or loss or laKabte profit or loss. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused laK losses only to Iha extent that ii Is 
probable !hat future taxable amounts will be available to u!ll!se those temporary differences and losses against 

The income tax expense or revenue attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also recognised dlreclly In 
equity. The associated current or deferred tax balances are recognised in these accounts. 

9 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

(e) Goods and Services Tax (GST) 
The statement of comprehensive Income has been prepared so that all components are stated exclusive of GST. All Items 
in the statement of financial position are stated net of GST, with the exception of receivables and payables, which Include 
GST invoiced. 

(f) Leases 
Company as lessee 
Leases In which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as 
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any Incentives received from the lessor) are charged to 
the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. 

(g) Impairment of non-financial assets 
Assets that have an Indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for Impairment. Assets that 
are subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed for Impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss Is recognised for the amount by which the 
asset's carrying amount exceeds Its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount Is the higher of an asset's fair value less 
costs to sell and value In use. For the purposes of assessing Impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which 
there are separately Identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). 

(h) Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents Includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial Institutions and bank overdrafts. 

(I) Trade receivables 
Trade receivables are recognised lnlllally at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less provision for 
doubtful debts. 

Collecliblllty of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. 

The carrying amount of the asset Is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss Is 
recognised in the statement of comprehensive Income within 'other expenses'. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, It is 
written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are 
credited against 'other expenses' In the statement of comprehensive Income. 

10 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued} 

0) Other fl nancla 1 assets 
Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fb:ed or determinable paymenls that are· not quoted in an 
active market. They arise when the Company provides money, goods or services directly lo a debtor with no intention of 
selling the receivable. Loans and receivables are included in lrade and other receivables ln !he statement of financial 
position, 

The Company assesses at each balance dale whether there Is objecllve evidence !hat any financial assets are Impaired. 

(k) Inventories 
Inventories comprise goods purchased for resale and are Valued at the lowar of cost and net realisable value. Cost is based 
on weighted average method of calculation. 

{I) Property, plant and equipment 
All property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment. Historlcai cost includes 
expenditure that is directly attributable lo the acquisition of the Items. 

Subsequent costs are Included ln the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when 
It is probable that future economic bene!lts associated with the Item will flow to the Company and the cost of the Item can be 
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of comprehensive Income during the 
financial period in which they are Incurred. 

Depreciation on assets is calculaled using the straight line method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net of !hair 
residual values, over their estimated useful lives, as follows; 

Fixtures and fi!Ungs 
Office machinery 
Plant and equipment 

3- 33 years 
3 -18 years 
4-15 years 

3.0% ·38.0% 
5.5% ·28,8% 
6.5% -25.2% 

The assets' residual values and useru1 lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. 

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately lo its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount Is greater 
than ils estimated recoverable amount. 

Gaifls and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are Included in the 
statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incurred. 

11 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 

(m) lnlanglble assets 

Computer software 
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the 
specific software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives (3 to 5 years). 

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as Incurred. 
Costs that are directly associated with the development of Identifiable and unique software products controlled by the 
Company, and that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as Intangible 
assets. Costs include the employee costs incurred as a result of developing software and an appropriate portion of relevant 
overheads. 

Compuler software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives (not exceeding 
3 years). 

(n) Trade and other payables 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided lo the Company prior to the end of the financial year 
and which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. 

(o) Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when: the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it Is 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required lo settle the obligallon; and the amount has been reliably estimated. 
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required In settlement Is determined by 
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision Is recognised even If the likelihood of an outflow with respect to 
any one item included In the same class of obligations may be small. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the item, value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. 

(p) Employee benefits 

Wages and salaries, Jong service leave, annual leave and sic/< leave 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave expected to be 
settled within 12 months of the reporting dale are recognised in other payables In respect of employees' services up to the 
reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 

(q) Financial Instruments by category 

All financial assets are classified as loans and receivables. The financial liabilities are all classified as measured at 
amortised cost. Therefore no additional disclosure has been included. 

12 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 

3, Changes in accounting policies and new accounting standards 

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year. 

The Financial Reporting Act 2013 ("FRA 2013'') applies lo any reporting periods beginning on or after 1 Aprll 2014 after 
which NZ IFRS - Dlfferenllal Reporting will be withdrawn, As the Company does not fall Into Tier 1 or Tier 2, ii has the 
option to either elect to prepare Special Purpose Financial Statements or General Purpose Financial Statements.· If the 
latter option is taken, then the Company WIii need to report under NZ IFRS Reduced Disclosure Regime. As at Iha date 
the financial statements were approved for Issue, management have not made any decision as to which approach ft will 
tafie. Pr for lo this, entities have the op lion to adopt NZ IFRS 1 o Consolldated Financial Statements, NZ IFRS 11 Joint 
Arrangements, NZ IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entitles, NZ IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement and NZ !AS 19 
Employee Benefits (Revised). However, !he Directors have chosen not to and as a result, there have been no changes In 
accounting policy during the year. 

13 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 

4. Revenue 

Operating revenue 

Management services 

5. Other income 

I - :. I II -

6, Expenses 

Profit/ (loss) before income tax Includ es the foll owing specific expenses: 

Depreciation 
Fixtures and fittings 

Office machinery 

Plant and equipment 

Amorlisation 

Computer software 

Employee benefits 
Wages and salaries 

Auditor's remuneration 

Audit services 

2014 
$'000 

67,896 
6,043 

62,938 

2014 
$'000 

130 

996 

1,126 

2014 
$'000 

7 
36 

42 

46 

3,325 

21 

11 Tax compliance services - Provided by Grant Thorn ton (2013: PriceWaterhouseCoopers) ____ :...:.,. __ 

32 

The auditor of the company Is Grant Thornton (2013: Grant Thorn ton), 

2013 
$'000 

58,751 
4,997 

63 ,748 

2013 
$'000 

115 

115 

2013 

$'000 

6 

44 

50 

26 

2,891 

14 

14 
28 

14 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 

6. Expenses (continued) 

Sponsorship 
Repairs and maintenance - general 
Bad and doubtful debts expense 
Rental expense relating to opara!lng leases 

7. Income tax expense 

(a) Income tax expense 
Current tax 
Deferred tax 

(b} Numerical reconclllatlon of Income tax expense to prlma facle tax payable 

Profit I (loss) before income tax expense 
Tax at lhe New Zealand tax rate of 28% 

Adjusted for: 

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible In calculating taxable income 
Income tax expense 

(c) Imputation Tax Credit account 

Opening Balance 
Movement 
Closing Balance 

:2014 2013 

$'000 $'000 

29 
483 256 

6 2 
:218 247 

:2014 2013 
$'000 $'000 

30 (23) 
(28) 29 

4 6 

4 6 
4 6 

:2014 2013 
$'000 $'000 

272 272 

272 272 

15 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 

8. Cash and cash equivalents 

Bank balances 
Deposits at call 
Cash and cash equivalents 

9. Trade and other receivables 

Trade receivables 
- --- - ---

- -~- --
Prepayments 
Total trade and other receivables 

10. Inventories 

Finished goods 
Al lower of cost and net realisable value 

No amounts have been pledged as security (2013: $nil). 

2014 2013 

$'000 $'000 

3 2 

4,284 3,419 

4,287 3,421 

2014 2013 

$'000 $'000 

542 570 

602 2,037 

19 136 

1,063 2,743 

2014 2013 

$'000 $'000 

3,155 3,237 

3,156 3,237 

16 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 

11. Property, plant and equipment 

At 31 March 2013 
Cost 
Accumulated depreciation 
Net book value 

At 31 March 2014 
Cost 
Accumulated depreciation 
Net book value 

Fixtures 
and 

fittings 
$'000 

118 
(67) 

51 

129 

(74) 

54 

Office Plant and 
machinery equipment 

$'000 $'000 

493 
(437) 

56 

499 
(470} 

29 

145 
(144) 

9 

(8) 

No security Is given to any party In relation to the Company's assets (2013: $nil). 

Total 
$'000 

756 

{648) 
108 

637 

(553) 

84 

17 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 

12. Intangible assets 

Computer Software 

Cost 

Accumulated amortisation 

Net bool< value 

Remaining amortisation period 
The remaining amortisation period for computer software is up to three years. 

13. Trade and other payables 

--- -- -

-- ----

14. Deferred tax asset 

(a) The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to: 

Deferred tax assets 

-- -- - -

Net deferred tax assets 

(b) Movements: 
Opening balance 

Credited I (debited) to the statement of comprehensive income 

Closing balance at 31 March 

(c) Expected settlement : 

Within 12 months 

(d) Unrecognised deferred tax 

2014 2013 
$'000 $'000 

720 
(533) 

187 

2014 
$'000 

6,027 
369 
377 

6,773 

2014 
$'000 

67 
47 

104 

78 
26 

104 

104 
104 

522 
(488) 

34 

2013 
$'000 

5,939 
324 
275 

6,538 

2013 
$'000 

63 
15 

78 

107 
(29) 

78 

78 
78 

The utilisation of deferred tax assets Is dependent on future taxable profits in excess of the profits arising from the reversal 
of existing taxable temporary differences. 

18 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 

15. Reserves and retained earnings 

(a) Retained earnings 
Opening balance 
Loss for the year 

Balance at end of year 

16. Events occurring after the reporting date 

2014 2013 
$'000 $'000 

116 
(4) 

112 

122 
(6) 

116 

No events requiring adjustment to or dlsofosure in the financial statements occurred after the reportlng date {2013: $nil), 

17. Contingencies 

As at 31 March 2014 the Company had no contingent liabilities or assets (2013:$nil). 

18. Commitments 

(a) Capital commitments 
There are no capital commitments at the reporting date (2013: $nil). 

(b) Lease commitments: Company as lessee 

Operating leases 
The Company leases premises, motor \lehicles, and plant and equipment. The Company has the right to renew the 
premises lease subject !o a redetermination of the lease rental by the lessor. There are no renewal options or opilons to 
purchase in respect of the plant and equipment and motor vehicles held under operating leases. 

There are no other restrictions on use. 

Commitments for minimum lease payments In relation to non-oanc:allable operating leases 
are payable as follows: 
Within one year 
Later than one year but not later than five years 

(c) Letter of Credit 
Letters of credit are issued and as at reporting date amount $87,000 (2013:$67,000). 

2014 2013 
$'000 $'000 

73 
75 

190 
62 

148 252 

19 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 

20 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Notes to the Flnanclal Statements 
For the year ended 31 March 2014 

20. Related party transactions (continued) 

Key management personnel 2014 

$'000 

2013 

$'000 
1,192 952 

(c) Outstanding balances 
The following balances are outs/anding at the reporting dale In re/el/on lotransacllons with related parties: 

2014 2013 
$'000 $'000 

Current receivables 
Shareholders 1,336 2,190 

Current payables 
Shareholders 858 163 

Loons 
Due to shareholders (3,000) (3,000) 

Impaired receivables and reoetvables past due 
There are no Joans to shareholders that are impairod at reporting date (2013: $nll). 

Bad debt expense 
No bad debt expense was recognised on shareholder loans this year (2013: $nil). 

(d) Guarantees 

There are 110 guarantees give11 or made for any financial obligations incurred or owed by the Company to related parties, 

The Company has been set-up for the purpose of provldlng procurement, distribution and management services to 1he 
shareholders. The shareholding trusts have confirmed their willingness to continue to provide flnanolal support to West 
Auckland Trust Servloos Ltd to enable the Company to meet i!s oblfgalions as they fall due. 

(e) Terms and conditions 
All transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates. The loans are interest free, 
unsecured and repayable on demand. · 

21. Share Capital 

Ordinary shares issued 

2014 
Number 

18 
$ 

2013 
Number 

18 

All ordinary shares rank equally with one vote attached to each fully paid ordinary share, Ordinary shares do not have a 
par value. 

22. Subsequent Events 

The Dlreolors are not aware of any other matters or circumstances since the en~ of the reporting period, that have 
slgniflcan!ly or may significantly affect the operations of West Auckland Trust Services Limited. 

$ 
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Attachment 2.2: WATS Audited Financial statement· 2015 f 

Redactions under section 7(2)(h} and (j) of LGOIMA: Protection of 
commercial information to enable to conduct of commercial activity without 
prejudice and to ensure that official information ls not used for improper gain 
or advantage. 
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WEST AUCKLAND TRUST SERVICES LIMITED 
DIRECTORS' REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report of West Auckland Trust Services 
Limited, incorporating the financial statements and the auditor's report, for the year ended 31 March 
2015. 

The Directors of the Company authorised these financial statements presented on pages 6 to 24 for 
issue on June 29th 2015. 

Brian Corban CNZM, QSO 

June 29th 2015 

June 29th 2015 
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Grant Thornton 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE READERS OF 
WEST AUCKLAND TRUST SERVICES LIMITED'$ 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 

The Auditor-General is the auditor of West Auckland Trust Services Limited (the Company). The Auditor
General has appointed me, Alec Flood, using the staff and resources of Grant Thornton, to carry out the 
audit of the financial statements of the company, on her behalf. 

Opinion 

We have aud ited the financ ial statements of the company on pages 6 to 24, that comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015, the statement of comprehensive income, statement 
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, and the notes to the 
financial statements that include accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion the financial statements of the company: 

present fairly, in all material respects : 

its financial position as at 31 March 2015; and 

its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended; and 

have been prepared in accordance with the New Zealand equivalents to International 
Financial Reporting Standards . 

Our audit was completed on 29 June 2015. This is the date at which our opinion is expressed . 

The basis of our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of the Board of 
Directors and our responsibilities, and we expla in our independence. 

Basis of opinion 

We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General's Auditing Standards , which 
incorporate the International Standards on Aud iting (New Zealand) . Those standards require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and carry out our audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

Material misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts and disclosures that , in our 
judgement, are likely to Influence readers ' overall understanding of the financial statements. If we had 
found material misstatements that were not corrected, we would have referred to them in our opinion. 

An audit involves carrying out procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements . The procedures selected depend on our judgement , including our 
assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments , we consider internal control relevant to the prepara tion of 
the company's financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
company's internal control. 
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Grant Thornton 

An audit also Involves evaluating: 

the appropriateness of accounting policies used and whether they have been consistently 
applfed; 

the reasonableness of the significant accounting estimates and judgements made by the 
Board of Directors; 

the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial statements; and 

the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of the financial 
statements. 

We believe we have obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements of the company, in accordance with the New Zealand equivalents to International 
Financial Reporting Standards, 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for such Internal control as they determine Is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. The Board of Directors is also responsible for the publication of the financial 
statements, whether in printed or electronic form. 

The Board of Directors' responsibilities arise from the Companies Act 1993. 

Responsibilities of the Auditor 

We are responsible for expressing an independent opinion on the financial statements and reporting 
that opinion to you based on our audit. 

Our responsibility arises from section 15 of the Public Audit Act 2001. 

Independence 

When carrying out the audit, we followed the independence requirements of the Auditor-General, 
which incorporate the independence requirements of the External Reporting Board. 

Grant Thornton also provided tax compliance services to the Company. 

Alec Flood 
Grant Thornton 
On behalf of the Auditor-General 
Auckland, New Zealand 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Financial Statements 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
for the year ended 31 March 2015 

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

6 
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West Auckland Trust S1ervices Limited 

Statement of Financial Position 
as at 31 Mar ch 2015 

2015 2014 
Notes $000 $000 

Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 10 4,428 4,287 
Trad e and oth er receivab les 11 1,538 1,897 
Inventories 12 3,766 3,155 

Income tax receivable 18 5 
Total current assets 9,750 9,344 

Non current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 13 108 84 
14 176 187 

u ererrea c;,,x i:i8st l 16 99 104 
Total non current assets 383 375 

Total assets 10,133 9,719 

Current llabillties 

Trad e and other payables 15 7,025 6,607 

Shareho lder loans 23 3,000 3,000 

Total current liabilities 10,025 9,607 

Total liabilities 10,025 9,607 

Net assets 108 112 

Equity 
Share capital 24 
Retained earnings 17 108 112 

Total equity 108 112 

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

11 7 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 31 March 2015 

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

8 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended 31 March 2015 

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

' 9 



36

West Auckland Trust Services ·Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2015 

1. General information 

West Auckland Trust Services Limited (the Company) is a limited liability Company registered under the 
Companies Act 1993. The Company is incorporated and domiciled in New Zealand. 

The Board of the Company do not have the power to amend these financial statements once issued. 

The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Company are procurement , warehousing , 
distribution and management services for Waitakere and Portage Licensing Trusts. 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. 

(a) Basis of preparation 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of 
New Zealand GAAP, the Companies Act 1993, New Zealand Accounting Standards and other 
authoritative pronouncements of the External Reporting Board (XRB). 

For the purposes of complying with NZ GAAP, the Company is a for-profit entity . Compliance with 
New Zealand Accounting Standards results in full compliance with the International Financial 
Reporting Standards) IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) . 

Historical cost convention 
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention 

Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with NZ IFRS requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates . It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of 
applying the Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or 
complexity , or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are 
disclosed in note 5. 

(b) Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The financial 
statements are presented in New Zealand dollars, which is the Company's functional and presentation 
currency . The Company does not transact in foreign currencies. 

All values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($000) unless otherwise stated . 

(c) Revenue recognition 

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods and services, net of Goods and Services Tax. 
Revenue is recognised as follows : 

10 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2015 

(Q Sale of goods 
Sales of goods are recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the 
customer and collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured. 

(ii) Interest income 
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. 

(iii) Management services 
Management services income is recognised at the time the services are provided. 

(d) Income tax 

The income tax expense or revenue for the period is the total of the current period's taxable income 
based on the income tax rate adjusted for any prior years' under/over provisions, and movements in the 
deferred tax balance except where the movement in deferred tax ls attributable to a movement in 
reserves. 

Movements in deferred tax are attributable to temporary differences between the tax base of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax 
assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when 
the assets are recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or 
substantively enacted at balance date. An exception is made for certain temporary differences arising 
from the initial recognition of an asset or a liability. No deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in 
relation to these temporary differences if they arose in a transaction, other than a business combination, 
that at the time of the transaction did not affect either accounting profit or loss or taxable profit or loss. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only to 
the extent that it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary 
differences and losses against 

The income tax expense or revenue attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also 
recognised directly in equity. The associated current or deferred tax balances are recognised in these 
accounts. 

(e) Goods and Services Tax (GST) 

The statement of comprehensive income has been prepared so that all components are stated exclusive 
of GST. All items in the statement of financial position are stated net of GST, with the exception of 
receivables and payables, which include GST invoiced. 

(f) Leases 

Company as lessee 
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are 
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received 
from the lessor} are charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the 
period of the lease. 

(g) Impairment of non-financial assets 

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for 
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances Indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 
An impairment loss Is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its 
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and 
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for 

Ii 11 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2015 

which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). 

(h) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions and 
bank overdrafts . 

(i) Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, 
less allowance for doubtful debts . 

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis . 

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of 
the loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income within 'other expenses'. When a trade 
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against 'other expenses' in the 
statement of comprehensive income. 

(j) other financial assets 

Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are 
not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Company provides money, goods or services 
directly to a debtor with no intention of selling the receivable . Loans and receivables are included in 
trade and other receivables in the statement of financial position. 

The Company assesses at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that any financial 
assets are impaired. 

(k) Inventories 

Inventories comprise goods purchased for resale and are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value . Cost is based on the weighted average method of calculation. 

{I) Property, plant and equipment 

All property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment. Historical 
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are 
charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are 
incurred . 

Depreciation on assets Is calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost or revalued 
amounts, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives, as follows: 

Fixtures and fittings 
Office machinery 
Plant and equipment 

3 - 33 years 
3 - 18 years 
4 -15 years 

3.0% - 36.0% 
5.5% -28.8% 
6.5% -25.2% 

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 
date. 

IJ 12 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2015 

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are 
included in the statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are 
Incurred. 

(m} Intangible assets 

Computer software 
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and 
bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives (3 to 5 
years). 

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an 
expense as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the development of identifiable and unique 
software products controlled by the Company, and that will probably generate economic benefits 
exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets. Costs include the employee 
costs incurred as a result of developing software and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. 

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated useful 
lives (not exceeding 3 years). 

(n) Trade and other payables 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of 
the financial year and which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 
days of recognition. 

(o) Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result 
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the 
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in 
settlement ls determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised 
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations 
may be small. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the 
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the item, value of money and 
the risks specific to the obligation. 

(p) Employee benefits 

Wages and salaries, long service leave, annual leave and sick leave 
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick 
leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in other payables in 
respect of employees' services up to the reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected to be 
paid when the liabilities are settled. 

(q) Financial instruments by category 

All financial assets are classified as loans and receivables. The financial liabilities are all classified as 
measured at amortised cost. Therefore no additional disclosure has been included. 

13 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2015 

3. Changes in accounting policies and new accounting standards 

A number of new and revised standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2014. 
Information on these new standards is presented below. 

NZ IAS 36 amendments. Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets 
These narrow-scope amendments address disclosure of information about the recoverable amount of 
impaired assets if that amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal. 

When developing IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement, the IASB decided to amend IAS 36 Impairment of 
Assets to require disclosures about the recoverable amount of Impaired assets. The IASB noticed however 
that some of the amendments made in introducing those requirements resulted in the requirement being 
more broadly applicable than the IASB had intended. These amendments to !AS 36 therefore clarify the 
IASB's original intention that the scope of those disclosures is limited to the recoverable amount of impaired 
assets that is based on fair value less costs of disposal. 

The XRB has made equivalent amendments to NZIAS 36 Impairment of Assets and is applicable to annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. 

The adoption of these amendments has not had a material impact on the Company as they are largely of the 
nature of clarification of existing requirements. 

New NZ IFRS standards and interpretations issued but not yet adopted 
A number of new standards and interpretations have been issued but are not yet effective for the current 
year-end. The reported results and financial position of the Company is not expected to change on adoption 
of these pronouncements as they do not result in any changes to the Company's existing accounting 
policies. Adoption will, however, result In changes to information currently disclosed in the financial 
statements. 

The Company does not intend to adopt any of the new pronouncements before their effective dates. 

Changes in accounting policies 
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year. 

4. Financial risk management 

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks namely market risk (including interest 
rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company is not 
exposed to foreign exchange risk and does not enter into derivatives. 

Risk management is carried out by the Management Team and Finance Department under policies 
approved by the Board of Directors. 

(a) Interest rate risk 

The Company's main interest rate risk arises from interest rate fluctuations on bank deposits. 

At 31 March 2015, if interest rates had changed by +/- 1 % from the year end rates of 3.40% (2014: 
2.65%) with all other variables held constant, post tax profit for the year would have been $44,000 
lower/higher (2014: $43,000 lower/higher). 

14 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2015 

(b) Credit risk 

Credit r]sk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits With banks as well as credit exposures 
to customers, including outstanding receivables and committed transactions. For banks only 
independently rated mainstream banks with a minimum rating of 'A' are accepted. If customers are 
independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, the Finance 
Department assesses the credit quality of the customer taking Into account its financial position, past 
experience and other factors. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored by the Finance 
Department and reviewed by senior management. 

(c) Liquidity risk 

The Company's liquidity is managed by maintaining sufficient cash resources for operations through 
bank deposits. 

(d} Capital management 

The Company's capital comprises retained earnings and related party loan, repayable on demand. 

When managing capital, management's objective is to ensure that the Company has a sufficient capital 
base for its purpose of proving procurement, distribution and management services to the 
shareholders. 

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. 

5. Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. 

15 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements ( continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2015 

(a) Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements 

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting 
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions 
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below: 

(ii) Income taxes 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset in accordance with NZ IAS 12 Income Taxes. 
Deferred tax has been calculated on the assumption that there will be no change in tax law or 
circumstances of the Company that will result in tax losses not being available to the Company in the 
future. 

(iv) Estimation of useful lives of assets 
The estimation of the useful lives of assets has been based on historical experience. Adjustments to 
useful lives are made when considered necessary. 

(v) Impairment of assets 
The Company determines whether assets are impaired at least on an annual basis. 

16 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2015 

9. Income tax expense 

(a) Income tax expense 

Current tax 
Deferred tax 

(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax 
payable 

Profit/ (loss) before income tax expense 

Tax at the New Zealand tax rate of 28% 

AdJusted for: 

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible In calculating taxable income: 
Income tax expense 

(c) Imputation Tax Credit account 

Opening Balance 
Movement 
Closing Balance 

If 

2015 2014 
$000 $000 

(1) 
5 
4 

4 
4 

2015 
$000 

272 
12 

284 

30 
(26) 

4 

4 
4 

2014 
$000 

272 

272 

17 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2015 

10. Cash and cash equivalents 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of 
receivables mentioned above. The Company does not hold any collateral as security . Refer to note 4 for 
more information on the risk management policy of the Company. 

12. Inventories 

2015 2014 
$000 $000 

Finished goods 
3,766 3,155 
3,766 3,155 

No amounts have been pledged as security (2014: $nil). 

18 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2015 

13. Property, plant and equipment 

Fixtures and Office 
fittings machinery 

$000 $000 

Year ended 31 March 2014 
Opening net book value 51 57 
Additions 10 7 
Depreciation (7) (35) 
Disposals 
Closing net book value 54 29 

At 31 March 2014 
Cost 129 499 
Accumulated depreciation {75} (470) 

Net book value 54 29 

Year ended 31 March 2015 
Opening net book value 54 29 
Additions 12 34 
Depreciation (7) (23) 
Disposals 
Closing net book value 59 40 

At 31 March 2015 
Cost 141 533 
Accumulated depreciation (82} (493} 
Net book value 59 40 

No assets are held under finance leases (2014: $nil). 

No security is given to any party in relation to the Company's assets (2014: $nil). 

14. Intangible assets 

Opening net book value 
Additions 
Amortisation charge 
Closing net book value 

Cost 
Accumulated amortisation 
Net book value 

J 

Plant and 
equipment Total 

$000 $000 

1 109 
17 

(42) 

1 84 

9 637 

{8} (553) 

1 84 

1 84 
9 55 

(1) (31) 

9 108 

17 691 
(8} {583} 

9 108 

2015 2014 
$000 $000 

187 
101 

(112} 
176 

821 
(645) 

176 

38 
194 
(45) 
187 

720 
{533) 

187 

19 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2015 

Remaining amortisation period 
The remaining amortisation period for computer software is up to thr.ee years . 

15. Trade and other payables 

16. Deferred tax asset 

(a) The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to: 

Deferred tax assets 

Net deferred tax assets 

(b) Movements: 

Opening balance 
Credited/ (debited) to the statement of comprehensive income 
Closing balance at 31 March 

(c) Expected settlement: 

Within 12 months 

(d) Unrecognised deferred tax 

2015 
$000 

5,213 
1,051 

137 
624 

7,025 

2015 
$000 

48 
51 
99 

104 
(5) 
99 

99 
99 

2014 
$000 

5,027 
834 
369 
377 

6,607 

2014 
$000 

57 

47 
104 

78 
26 

104 

104 
104 

The utilisation of deferred tax assets is dependent on future taxable profits in excess of the profits arising 
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences . 

!I 20 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2015 

17. Retained earnings 

-B~lance at end of year 

19. Events occurring after the reporting date 

2015 2014 
$000 $000 

112 
(4) 

108 

116 
(4) 

112 

No events requiring adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements occurred after the reporting date 
(2014: $nil). 

20. Contingencies 

As at 31 March 2015 the Company had no contingent liabilities or assets (2014: $nil). 

21. Commitments 

(a) Capital commitments 
There are no capital commitments at the reporting date (2014: $nil). 

(b) Lease commitments: Company as lessee 

Operating leases 
The Company leases premises, motor vehicles, and plant and equipment. The Company has the right to 
renew the premises lease subject to a redetermination of the lease rental by the lessor. There are no 
renewal options or options to purchase in respect of the plant and equipment and motor vehicles held under 
operating leases. 

J 21 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements ( continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2015 

There are no other restrictions on use. 

(c) Letter of credit 

23. Related party transactions 

(a) Directors 

2015 
$000 

108 
137 
245 

2014 
$000 

73 
75 

148 

The persons who were directors of the Company during the financial year are as follows: B Corban, T 
Livingstone, A Bonner, C Barbour, D McAteer, J Clews, R Dallow, N Henderson and S Tollestrup. 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year em;Jed 31 March 2015 

(c) Outstanding balances 

The following balances are outstanding at the reporting date in relation to transactions with related parties: 

2015 2014 
$000 $000 

967 1,336 

1,051 858 

3,000 3,000 

The loans are for working capital to fund the services provided by Company to its shareholders. The loans 
are interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand, therefore the impact of discounting is insignificant 

Fair values 
As all related parties transactions are on an at call basis the fair value (minus any impairment allowance) is 
considered to be the values as stated in the financial statements. 

Credit risk 
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the higher of the carrying value and fair value 
of each class of receivables mentioned above. The Company does not hold any collateral as security. 
Refer to note 4 for more information on the risk management policy of the Company. 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements ( continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2015 

Impaired receivables and receivables past due 
There are no amounts due from shareholders that are impaired at reporting date (2014: $nil). 

Bad debt expense 
No bad debt expense was recognised on shareholder balances this year (2014: $nil). 

(d) Guarantees 
There are no guarantees given or made for any financial obligations incurred or owed by the Company to 
related parties. 

The Company has been set-up for the purpose of providing procurement, distribution and management 
services to the shareholders. The shareholding trusts have confirmed their willingness to continue to provide 
financial support to West Auckland Trust Services Limited to enable the Company to meet its obligations as 
they fall due. 

(e) Terms and conditions 
All transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions, and at market rates. The loans 
are interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand. 

24. Share capital 

Ordinary shares issued 

2015 

Number 
18 

$ 

2014 

Number 
18 

$ 

All ordinary shares rank equally with one vote attached to each fully paid ordinary share . Ordinary shares do 
not have a par value. 

24 
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!Attachment 2.3: WATS Audited Financial Statement• 20ml 

Redactions under section 7{2J(h) and U) of 
LGOIMA: Protection of commercial 
information to enable to conduct of 
commercial activity without prejudice and 
to ensure that official Information is not 
used for improper gain or advantage. 
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WEST AUCKLAND TRUST SERVICES LIMITED 
DIRECTORS' REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report of West Auckland Trust Services 
Limited, incorporating the financial statements and the independent auditor's report, for the year 
ended 31 March 2016. 

The Directors of the Company authorised these financial statements presented on pages 6 to 25 for 
issue on 27 June 2016. 

Brian Corban CNZM, QSO 

[~ . . ........... ,,., ... ..... ......... .......... / ................................... . 
Director. Tim Livingstone MNZM 

27 June 2016 
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Grant Thornton 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO THE READERS OF WEST AUCKLAND TRUST SERVICES LIMITED'S 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 

The Auditor-General is the auditor of West Auckland Trust Services Limited (the Company). The 
Auditor-General has appointed me, Alec Flood, using the staff and resources of Grant Thornton, to 
carry out the audit of the financial statements of the Company, on her behalf. 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of the company on pages 6 to 25, that comprise the 
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, the statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and.statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, and 
the notes to the financlal statements that Include accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

In our opinion the financial statements of the Company: 

present fairly, in all material respects: 

its financial position as at 31 March 2016; and 

its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended; and 

comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand in accordance with the 
New Zealand equivalents of International Financial Reporting Standards. 

Our audit was completed on 27 June 2016. This is the date at which our opinion is expressed. 

The basis of our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of the Board 
of Directors and our responsibilities, and we explain our independence. 

Basis of opinion 

We carried out our audit in accordance with the Audftor-General's Auditing Standards, which 
incorporate the International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand). Those standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and carry out our audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

Material misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts and disclosu.res that, in our 
judgement, are likely to influence readers' overall understanding of the financial statements. If we 
had found material misstatements that were not corrected, we would have referred to them in our 
opinion. 

An audit involves carrying out procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, 
including our assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the 
preparation of the Company's financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the company's internal control. 
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Grant Thornton 

An audit also involves evaluating: 

the appropriateness of accounting policies used and whether they have been consistently 
applied; 

the reasonableness of the significant accounting estimates and judgements made by the 
Board of Directors: 

the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial statements: and 

the overall presentation of the financial statements . 

We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of the financial 
statements . 

We believe we have obtained sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion . 

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements for the company that comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New 
Zealand and with the New Zealand equivalents of International Financial Reporting Standards. 

The Board of Directors' responsibilities arise from the Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 2012. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary 
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. The Board of Directors is also responsible for the publication of the financial 
statements, whether in printed or electronic form. 

Responsibilities of the Auditor 

We are responsible for expressing an independent opinion on the financial statements and 
reporting that opinion to you based on our audit. Our responsibility arises from the Public Audit Act 
2001. 

Independence 

When carrying out the audit, we followed the independence requirements of the Auditor-General, 
which incorporate the independence requirements of the External Reporting Board . 

Grant Thornton also provided tax compliance services to the Company . 

Alec Flood 
Grant Thornton 
On behalf of the Auditor-General 
Auckland, New Zealand 
On behalf of the Auditor-General 



57

West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Financial Statements 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
for the year ended 31 March 2016 

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

6 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Statement of Financial Position 
as at 31 March 2016 

2016 2015 
Notes $000 $000 

Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 10 5,237 4,428 
Trade and other receivables 11 2,416 1,538 
Inventories 12 4,564 3,766 
Income tax receivable 18 
Total current assets 12,217 9,750 

Non current assets 

13 127 108 
14 90 176 
16 129 99 

Total non current assets 346 383 

Total assets 12,563 10,133 

Current liabilities 

Trade and other payables 15 9,440 7,025 
Shareholder loans • 3,000 3,000 
Income tax payable 25 
Total current liabilities 12,465 10,025 

Total liabilities 12,465 10,025 

Net assets 98 108 

Equity 
Share capital 24 
Retained earnings 17 98 108 

Total equity 98 108 

The a~ Statement of Finan eta/ PosWon should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

7 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 31 March 2016 

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

8 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended 31 March 2016 

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

9 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2016 

1. General information 

West Auckland Trust Services Limited (the Company) is a limited liability Company registered under the 
Companles Act 1993. The Company is incorporated and domiciled in New Zealand. 

The Board of the Company do not have the power to amend these financial statements once issued. 

The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Company are procurement, warehousing, 
distribution and management services for Waitakere and Portage licensing Trusts. 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. 

(a) Basis of preparation 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of 
New Zealand GMP, the Companies Act 1993, New Zealand Accounting standards and other 
authoritative pronouncements ofthe External Reporting Board (XRB}. 

For the purposes of complying with NZ GMP, the Company is a for-profit entity. Compliance with 
New Zealand Accounting Standards results in full compliance with the International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Tier 1 for-profit reporting entity requirements set out by the 
External Reporting Board in its "Accounting Standards Framework". 

Historical cost convention 
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. 

Critical accounting estimates and judgements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with NZ IFRS requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement In the process of 
applying the Company's accounting policies. The areas invoMng a higher degree of judgement or 
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are 
disclosed ln note 5. 

(b) Functional and presentation currency 

Items included ln the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The financial 
statements are presented in New Zealand dollars, which is the Company's functional and presentation 
currency. The Company does not transact In foreign currencies. 

All values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($000) unless otherwise stated. 

(c) Revenue recognition 

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods and services, net of Goods and Services Tax. 
Revenue is recognised as follows: 

(U Sale of goods 
Sales of goods are recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership have transferred to the 
customer and co!lectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured. 

{if) Interest income 
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. 

10 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements {continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2016 

(iii) Management services 
Management services income is recognised at the time the services are provided. 

(d) Income tax 

The income tax expense or revenue for the period is the total of the current period's taxable income 
based on the income tax rate adjusted for any prior years ' under/over provisions , and movements in the 
deferred tax balance except where the movement in deferred tax is attributable to a movement in 
reserves . 

Movements in deferred tax are attributable to temporary differences between the tax base of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax 
assets and liabilit ies are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when 
the assets are recovered or liabilities are settled , based on those tax rates which are enacted or 
substantively enacted at balance date. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only to 
the extent that it is probable that future taxable amounts will be availab le to utilise those temporary 
differences and losses against. 

The income tax expense or revenue attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also 
recognised directly in equity . The associated current or deferred tax balances are recognised in these 
accounts . 

(e) Goods and Services Tax (GST) 

The statement of comprehensive income has been prepared so that all components are stated exclusive 
of GST. All items in the statement of financial position are stated net of GST, with the exception of 
receivables and payables, which include GST invoiced. 

(f) Leases 

Company as lessee 
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are 
classified as operating leases . Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received 
from the lessor) are charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the 
period of the lease. 

(g) Impairment of non-financial assets 

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for 
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable . 
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its 
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and 
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for 
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). 

(h) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financ ial institutions and 
bank overdrafts, which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

Ii 11 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2016 

(i) Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, 
less allowance for doubtful debts. 

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. 

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of 
the loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income within 'other expenses'. When a trade 
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against 'other expenses' in the 
statement of comprehensive income. 

(j) other financial assets 

Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are 
not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Company provides money, goods or services 
directly to a debtor with no intention of selling the receivable. Loans and receivables are included in 
trade and other receivables in the statement of financial position. 

The Company assesses at each balance date whether there Is objective evidence that any financial 
assets are impaired. 

(k) Inventories 

Inventories comprise goods purchased for resale and are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value. Cost is based on the weighted average method of calculation. 

The Company periodically reviews the value of items in inventory and provides write-downs or write-0ffs 
of inventory based on its assessment of market conditions. 

The amount of the inventory allowance is the difference between the carrying amount and the expected 
net real!sable value. Movements in the inventory allowance are recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incurred. 

(I) Property, plant and equipment 

Alf property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment. Historical 
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognlsed as a separate asse~ as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are 
charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the flnanclal period in which they are 
incurred. 

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost or revalued 
amounts, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives, as follows: 

Fixtures and fittings 
Office machinery 
Plant and equipment 

3 33 years 
3 -18 years 
4 15 years 

3.0% -.36.0% 
5.5% -28.8% 
6.5% -25.2% 

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 
date. 

12 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements ( continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2016 

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are 
included in the statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are 
incurred. 

(m) Intangible assets 

Computer software 
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and 
bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives (3 to 5 
years) . 

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an 
expense as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the development of identifiable and unique 
software products controlled by the Company, and that will probably generate economic benefits 
exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets. Costs include the employee 
costs incurred as a result of developing software and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads . 

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated useful 
lives (not exceeding 3 years). 

(n) Trade and other payables 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of 
the financial year and which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 
days of recognition. 

(o) Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result 
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the 
amount has been reliably estimated . Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in 
settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole . A provision is recognised 
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations 
may be small . 

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the 
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the item, value of money and 
the risks specific to the obligation . 

(p) Employee benefits 

Wages and salaries, long service leave, annual leave and sick leave 
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick 
leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in other payables in 
respect of employees' services up to the reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected to be 
paid when the liabilities are settled. 

(q) Financial instruments by category 

All financial assets are classified as loans and receivables . The financial liabilities are all classified as 
measured at amortised cost. Therefore no additional disclosure has been included. 

13 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2016 

3. Changes in accounting policies and new accounting standards 

A number of new and revised standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2015, 
but none of these amendments has had a material impact on the Company as they are largely of the nature 
of clarification of existing requirements. 

New NZ IFRS standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective 

NZ IFRS 9 "Financial instruments (effective date from 1 January 2018) 
NZ IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets and 
liabilities. 

These requirements improve and simplify the approach for classification and measurement of financial 
assets compared with the requirements of NZ IAS 39. The main changes are: 

• Financial assets that are debt instruments will be classified based on: 
{i} the objective of the entity's business model for managing the financial assets; and 
(il) the characteristics of the contractual cash flows. 

• Allows an irrevocable election on initial recognition to present gains and losses on Investments in 
equity instruments that are not held for trading in other comprehensive income (instead of in profit 
or loss). Dividends in respect of these investments that are a return on investment can be 
recognised in profit or loss and there ls no impairment or recycling on disposal of the instrument. 

• Introduces a "fair value through other comprehensive income" measurement category for particular 
simple debt instruments. 

• Finandal assets can be designated and measured at fair value through profit or loss at initial 
recognition if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition 
Inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities, or recognising the gains and 
losses on them, on different bases. 

• Where the fair value option is used for financial liabilities the change In fair value ls to be accounted 
for as follows: 

{i) The change attributable to changes in credit risk are presented in other comprehensive 
Income (OCI); and 
(ii) The remaining change is presented In profit or loss. 

If this approach creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch in the profit or loss, the effect of the changes 
in credit risk are also presented in profit or loss. otherwise, the following requirements have generally 
been carried forward unchanged from NZ IAS 39 into NZ lFRS 9: 

(i) Classification and measurement of financial liabilities; and 
(ii) Derecognition requirements for financial assets and liabilities. 

NZ IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers {effective date from 1 January 2018} 
The IASB and the XRB have now published NZ IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and it: 

• replaces NZ IAS 18 Revenue, NZ IAS 11 Construction Contracts and some revenue-related 
interpretations, 

• establishes a new control-based revenue recognition model, 
• changes the basis for deciding whether revenue is to be recognised over time or at a point in time, 
• provides new arid more detailed guidance on specific topics, 
• expands and improves disclosures about revenue. 

In particular, NZ IFRS 15 includes important new guidance on: 
• contracts involving the dellvery of two or more goods or services - when to account separately for 

the individual performance obligations in a multiple element arrangement, how to allocate the 
transaction price, and when to combine contracts timing whether revenue is required to be 
recognized over time or at a single point in time, 

• variable pricing and credit risk - addressing how to treat arrangements with variable or contingent 
(e.g. performance-based) prrcing, and introducing an overall constraint on revenue, 

14 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2016 

• time value - when to adjust a contract price for a financing component, and 
• various specific issues, such as non-cash consideration and asset exchanges, contract costs, 

rights of return and other customer options, supplier repurchase options, warranties, principal 
versus agent, licencing, breakage, non-refundable upfront fees, and consignment and bill-and-hold 
arrangements . 

NZ IFRS 16 - Leases (effective date from 1 January 2019) 
In February 2016 the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board approved the issue of NZ IFRS 16 Leases. 
The new lease accounting standard provides much-improved transparency and comparability of 
companies' lease assets and lease liabilities for investors and other users of financial statements. 

The Standard eliminates the classification of leases as either operating leases or finance leases. Instead, 
there is a single lessee model which requires a lessee to recognise on the statement of financial position 
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of 
low value. 

Other matters to note about this replacement standard is that it: 
• changes the definition of a lease, 
• sets requirements on how to account for the asset and liability, including complexities such 

as non-lease elements , variable lease payments and option periods, 
• provides exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low value assets, 
• changes the accounting for sale and leaseback arrangements, and 
• requires more detailed disclosures . 

NZ IFRS 16 will not have any effect on the total amount of cash flows reported but it is expected to have 
an effect on the presentation of cash flows. This is because, applying NZ IAS 17 Leases, cash flows relating 
to operating leases are presented as cash flows from operating activities while applying NZ IFRS 16 will 
result in the presentation within financial activities of cash flows relating to the repayment of principal on 
lease liabilities. 

The accounting requirements for lessors are substantially the same as those in NZ IAS 17. A lessor, 
therefore, continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and continues to account 
for those two types of leases differently. 

The Company does not intend to adopt any of the new pronouncements before their effective dates. 

Changes in accounting policies 
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year. 

4. Financial risk management 

The Company's activities expose It to a variety of financial risks namely market risk (including interest rate 
risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company is not exposed 
to any foreign exchange risk and does not enter into derivatives. 

Risk management is carried out by the Management Team and Finance Department under policies 
approved by the Board of Directors. 

(a) Interest rate risk 

The Company's main interest rate risk arises from interest rate fluctuations on bank deposits. 

At 31 March 2016, if interest rates had changed by +/- 1 % from the year end rates of 2.15% (2015: 3.40%) 

15 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2016 

with all other variables held constant, post tax prom for the year would have been $48,000 lower/higher 
(2015: $44,000 lower/higher). 

(b) Credit risk 

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks as well as credit exposures 
to customers, including outstanding receivables and committed transactions. For banks only 
independently rated mainstream banks with a minimum rating of 'A' are accepted. If customers are 
independently rated, these ratings are used. otherwise, if there is no independent rating, the Senior 
Management will assess the credit quality of the customer taking into account its financial position, past 
experience and other factors. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored by Senior Management. 

(c) Liquidity risk 

The Company's liquidity is managed by maintaining sufficient cash resources for operations through 
bank deposits. 

(d) Capital management 

The Company's capital comprises retained earnings and related party loan, repayable on demand. 

When managing capital, management's objective is to ensure that the Company has a sufficient capital 
base for its purpose of providing procurement, distribution and management services to the 
shareholders. 

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. 

5. Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other 
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

16 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2016 

(a) Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements 

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future . The resulting accounting 
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results . The estimates and assumptions that 
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year are discussed below: 

(i) Income taxes 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset in accordance with NZ IAS 12 Income Taxes . Deferred 
tax has been calculated on the assumption that there will be no change in tax law or circumstances of the 
Company that will result in tax losses not being available to the Company in the future. 

(ii) Estimation of useful Jives of assets 
The estimation of the useful lives of assets has been based on historical experience . Adjustments to 
useful lives are made when considered necessary . 

(iii) Impairment of assets 
The Company determines whether assets are impaired at least on an annual basis. 

17 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements ( continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2016 

9. Income tax expense 

(a) Income tax expense 

Current tax 
Deferred tax 

(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prlma facle tax 
payable 

Profit/ (loss) before income tax expense 
Tax at the New Zealand tax rate of 28% 

Adjusted for: 

Tax eff.ect of amounts which are not deductible in calculating taxable income: 
Income tax expense 

(c) Imputation Tax Credit account 

Opening Balance 
Movement 
Closlng Balance 

2016 
$000 

40 
(30) 

10 

2016 
$000 

10 
10 

2016 
$000 

284 
(2) 

282 

2015 
$000 

(1) 
5 
4 

2015 
$000 

4 
4 

2015 
$000 

272 
12 

284 

18 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2016 

10. Cash and cash equivalents 

(a) Cash at bank and on hand 
These amounts are non-interest bearing. 

(b) Deposits at call 
Deposits bear floating interest rates of 2.15% (2015: 3.40%) . These deposits are held on call. 

(c) Fair value 
The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents equals the fair value. 

11. Trade and other receivables 

Fair value and credit risk 
Due to the short-term nature of trade receivables, their carrying value is assumed to approximate their fair 
value. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivables 
mentioned above . The Company does not hold any collateral as security . Refer to note 4 for more 
information on the risk management policy of the Company. 

12. Inventories 

2016 2015 
$000 $000 

Finished goods 
4,564 3,766 

No amounts have been pledged as security (2015: $nil). 

19 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements ( continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2016 

13. Property, plant and equipment 

Year ended 31 March 2016 
Opening net book value 
Additions 
Depreciation 
Closing net book value 

At 31 March 2016 
Cost 
Accumulated depreciation 
Net book value 

Year ended 31 March 2015 
Opening net book value 
Additions 
Depreciation 
Closing net book value 

At 31 March 2015 
Cost 
Accumulated depreciation 

Net book value 

Fixtures and 
fittings 

$000 

59 

(8} 
51 

141 
(90) 

51 

54 
12 
(7} 
59 

141 
(82} 

59 

No assets are held under finance leases (2015: $nil). 

Office 
machinery 

$000 

40 
60 

(31} 
69 

593 
(524} 

69 

29 
34 

(23) 
40 

533 

(493} 

40 

No security is given to any party in relation to the Company's assets {2015: $nil). 

14. Intangible assets 

Opening net book value 
Additions 
Amortisation charge 
Closing net book value 

Cost 
Accumulated amortisation 
Net book value 

Plant and 
equipment 

$000 

9 
1 

(3) 
7 

18 
(11} 

7 

1 
9 

(1} 
9 

17 
{8} 

9 

2016 
$000 

176 
44 

(130) 
90 

865 
(775) 

90 

Total 
$000 

108 
61 

{42} 
127 

752 

{625~ 
127 

84 
55 

(31} 
108 

691 
(583} 

108 

2015 
$000 

187 
101 

(112) 
176 

821 
(645) 

176 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2016 

Remaining amortisation period 
The remaining amortisation period for computer software is up to three years. 

15. Trade and other payables 

2016 2015 
$000 $000 

7,021 5,213 
1,399 1,051 

163 137 
857 624 

9,440 7,025 

16. Deferred tax asset 

2016 2015 
$000 $000 

(a) The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to: 

Deferred tax assets 
71 48 
58 51 

129 99 

99 104 
30 (5) 

Closing balance at 31 March 129 99 

(c) Expected settlement: 
Later than 12 months 129 99 

129 99 
(d) Unrecognised deferred tax 
The utilisation of deferred tax assets is dependent on future taxable profits in excess of the profits arising 
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences . 

21 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements ( continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2016 

17. Retained earnings 

-Bafance at end of year 

2016 2015 
$000 $000 

108 
(10} 

98 

112 
(4) 

108 

18. Reconciliation of profit after income tax to net cash inflow from operating activities 

19. Events occurring after the reporting date 

No events requiring adjustment to or disclosure in the financlaf statements occurred after the reporting date 
(2015: $nil). 

20. Contingencies 

As at 31 March 2016 the Company had no contingent liabiHtles or assets (2015: $nil). 

21. Commitments 

(a) Capital commitments 
There are no capital commitments at the reporting date (2015: $nil). 

(b) Lease commitments: Company as lel;>f;,88 

Operating leases 
The Company leases premises, motor vehicles, and plant and equipment. The Company has the right to 
renew the premises lease subject to a redetermination of the lease rental by the lessor. There are no 
renewal options or options to purchase in respect of the plant and equipment and motor vehicles held under 
operating leases. 

There are no other restrictions on use. 

1 22 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2016 

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non-cancellable 
operating leases are payable as follows : 

23. Related party transactions 

(a) Directors 

2016 2015 
$000 $000 

124 
149 
273 

108 
137 
245 

The persons who were directors of the Company during the reporting period are as follows : B Corban, 
T Livingstone, A Bonner, C Barbour, D McAteer, J Clews, R Dallow, N Henderson and S Tollestrup . 

23 
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West Auckland Trust SE~rvices Limited 
Notes to the Financial !•tatements (continued) 
fo r the year ended 31 March 20 16 

The following transactions occurred with other related parties : 

(c) Outstanding balances 

The following balances are outstanding at the repo,ti11g date in relation to transactions with related parties: 

2016 2015 
$000 $000 

1,359 967 

1,399 1,051 

3,000 3,000 

Fair values 
As all related parties trans actions are on an at call basis the fair value (minus any impairment allowance) is 
considered to be the va lues as stated in th,~ financial statements. 

Credit risk 
The max im um expos ure to credit risk at the reporting date is the higher of the carry ing va lue and fair value of 
each class of receivables mentioned abOVE!. Th e Company does not hold any collateral as security. Refer to 
note 4 for more information on the risk management policy of the Company. 

24 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements ( continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2016 

Impaired receivables and receivables past due 
There are no amounts due from shareholders that are impaired at reporting date (2015 : $nil) . 

Bad debt expense 
No bad debt expense was recognised on shareho lder balances this year (2015: $nil) . 

(d) Guarantees 
There are no guarantees given or made for any financial obligations incurred or owed by the Company to 
related part ies. 

(e) Terms and conditions 
All transactions were made on normal commercial terms and conditions, and at market rates . The loans 
are interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand. 

24. Share capital 

Ordinary shares issued 

2016 
Number 

18 
$ 

2015 

Number 
18 

$ 

All ordinary shares rank equally with one vote attached to each fully paid ordinary share . Ordinary shares do 
not have a par value. 
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jAttachment 2.4: WATS Audited Financial Statement. 2017 

Redactions under section 7(2)(h) and 0) of 
LGOIMA: Protection of commerclal information 
to enable to conduct of commercial activity 
without prejudice and to ensure that official 
information is not used for Improper gain or 
advantage. 
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Shareholders 
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distribution and management services for Waitakere and Portage Licensing Trusts. 
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Grant Thornton 
152 Fanshawe Street 
Auckland 
New Zealand 

Solicitors 
Price Baker Berridge 
87 Central Park Drive 
Henderson 
Auckland 
New Zealand 

Bankers 
Bank of New Zealand (BNZ) 
373 Great North Road 
Henderson 
Auckland 
New Zealand 

If 

'i·:. 



79

Contents 

WEST AUCKLAND TRUST SERVICES LIMITED 
31 MARCH 2017 

Directors' Report 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Financial Statements 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 

Statement of Financial Position 

Statement of Changes in Equity 

Statement of Cash F[ows 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

Page 

3 

4 

7 

8 

g 

10 

11 -27 

2 



80

WEST AUCKLAND TRUST SERVICES LIMITED 
DIRECTORS' REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report of West Auckland Trust Services Limited, 
incorporating the financial statements and the independent auditor's report, for the year ended 31 
March 2017 . 

The Shareholders of the Company have exercised their rights under Section 211 (3) of the Companies 
Act 1993 and agreed that this annual report need not comply with sections (a) and (e) to U) of Section 
211 (1) of the Act. 

The Directors of the Company authorised these financial statements presented on pages 7 to 27 for 
issue on 27 June 2017. 

For and on behalf of the Board 

/~Wt~ ............. . 
Chairman Brian Corban CNZM, QSO 

27 June 2017 

3 
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Grant Thornton 
An instinct for growth'" 

Independent Auditor1s Report 
TO THE READERS OF WEST AUCKLAND TRUST SERVICES LIMITED'S 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

The Auditor-General Is the auditor of West Auckland Trust Services Limited {the Company). The 
Auditor-General has appointed me, Alec Flood, using the staff and resources of Grant Thornton, to 
carry out the audit of the financlaf statements, on his behalf. 

Opinion 

We have audited: 

the financial statements of the Company on pages 7 to 27 that comprises the statement of 
financial position as at 31 March 2017, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flo\NS for the year ended on that date, and the notes 
to the financial statements that include accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion the financial statements of the Company on pages 7 to 27: 

present fairly, in all material respects: 

- its financial position as at 31 March 2017; and 

- its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended; and 

comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand in accordance with the 
New Zealand equivalents of International Financial Reporting Standards. 

Our audit was completed on 27 June 2017. This ls the date at which our opinion is expressed. 

The basis for our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of the Board of 
Dfrectors and our responsibilities relating to the financial statements, we comment on other 
information, and we explain our independence. 

Basis for opinion 

We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General's Auditing Standards, which 
incorporate the Professional and Ethical Standards and !he International Standards on Auditing {New 
Zealand) issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. Our responslbilities 
under those standards are further described in the Responsibilities of the auditor section of our report. 

We have fulfilled our responsibilities in accordance with the Auditor-General's Auditing Standards. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained ls sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 
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Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the financial statements 

The Board of Directors is responsible on behalf of the Company for preparing financial statements 
that are fairly presented and that comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand . 

The Board of Directors is responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable 
It to prepare financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error . 

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible on behalf of the Company 
for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern . The Board of Directors is also 
responsible for disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting , unless the Board of Directors Intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Director's responsibilities arise from the Companies Act 1993. 

Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole, 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance , but is not a guarantee that an audit carried out in 
accordance with the Auditor-General's Aud iting Standards will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts or disclosures, and can arise 
from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the decisions of readers taken on the basis of these 
financial statements . 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditor-General's Auditing Standards, we exercise 
professional judgement and mainta in professional scepticism throughout the audit. Also : 

we identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due lo fraud or error , design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations , or the override of internal control. 

we obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances , but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. 

we evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors . 

we conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by 
the Board of Directors and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or condit ions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company 's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
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conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern, 

we evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation, 

we communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies !n internal control that we identify during our audit. 

Our responsibifities arise from the Public Audit Act 2001. 

Other Information 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
Directory and the Directors' Report on pages 1 and 3, respectively, but does not include the financial 
statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of audit opinion or assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information. In doing so, we consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained In the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on our work, we conclude that there Is a material misstatement of this other 
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Independence 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the independence requirements of the 
Auditor-General's Auditing Standards, which incorporate the independence requirements of 
Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised): Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by 
the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. 

In addition to the audit, we have carried out engagements in the areas of tax compliance, which are 
compatible with those independence requirements. Other than the audit .;ind these engagements, we 
have no relationship with, or interests in, the Company. 

Alec Flood 
Grant Thornton 
On behalf of the Auditor-General 
Auckland, New Zealand 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Financial Statements 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
for the year ended 31 March 2017 

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

7 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Statement of Financial Position 
as at 31 March 2017 

2017 2016 
Notes $000 $000 

Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 10 5,336 5,2:}7 
Trade and other receivables 11 1,721 2,416 
Inventories 12 4?96 4,564 
Total current assets 11,853 12,217 

Non current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 13 92 127 
14 57 90 

Deferred tax asset 16 151 129 
Total non current assets 300 346 

Total assets 12,153 12,563 

Current liabilities 

Trade and other payables 15 9,007 9,440 
Shareholder loans 23 3,000 3,000 
Income tax payable 55 25 
Total current liabilities 12,062 12,465 

Total liabilities 12,062 12,465 

Net assets 91 98 

Equity 
Share capital 24 
Retained earnings 17 91 98 

Total equity 

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

8 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 31 March 2017 

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

9 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended 31 March 2017 

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

10 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2017 

1. General information 

West Auckland Trust Services Limited (the Company) is a limited liability Company registered under the 
Cotnpanies Act 1993. The Company is incorporated and domiciled in New Zealand. These financial 
statements have been prepared to fulfil obligations under the Companies Act 1993 and the Financial 
Reporting Act 2013. 

The Board of the Company do not have the power to amend these financial statements once issued. 

The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Company are procurement , warehousing, 
distribution and management services for Waitakere and Portage Licensing Trusts. 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. 

(a) Basis of preparation 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of 
generally accepted accounting practices in New Zealand (NZ GAAP), the Companies Act 1993, and 
other authoritative pronouncements issued by the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board. 

For the purposes of complying with NZ GAAP, the Company is a for-profit entity. Compliance with New 
Zealand Accounting Standards results in full compliance with New Zealand equivalents to International 
Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) and the Tier 1 for-profit reporting entity requirements set out 
by the External Reporting Board in its "Accounting Standards Framework" . 

Historical cost convention 
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. 

Critical accounting estimates and judgements 
The preparation of financia l statements in conformity with NZ IFRS requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying 
the Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, 
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in 
note 5. 

(b) Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency') . The financial 
statements are presented in New Zealand dollars, which is the Company's functional and presentation __ _ 
currency . The Company does not transact in foreign currencies . ✓,;;-~nt f,:._: , 

All values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($000) unless otherwise stated. ( ~ t-\u,ti:ec1; l 
'·','C!-Lf'-.·/Y 

(c) Revenue recognition 

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods and services , net of Goods and Services Tax . 
Revenue is recognised as follows: 

(0 Sale of goods and services 
Sales of goods and services are recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership have transferred 
to the customer and collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured. 

(ii) Interest income 
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. 

11 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements ( continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(iii) Management services 
Management services income is recognised at the time the services are provided. 

(d) Income tax 

The income tax expense or revenue for the period is the total of the current period's taxable income based 
on the income tax rate adjusted for any prior years' under/over provisions, and movements in the deferred 
tax balance except where the movement in deferred tax is attributable to a movement in reserves, 

Movements in deferred tax are attributable to temporary differences between the tax base of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and c;1ny unused tax losses. Deferred tax 
assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when the 
assets are recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or substantively 
enacted at balance date. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only to the 
extent that it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences 
and losses against. 

The income tax expense or revenue attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also 
recognised directly in equity. The associated current or deferred tax balances are recognised in these 
accounts. 

(e) Goods and Services Tax (GST) 

The statement of comprehensive income has been prepared so that all components are stated exclusive 
of GST. All items in the stat.ement of financial position are stated net of GST, with the exception of 
receivables and payables, which include GST invoiced. 

(f) Leases 

Company as lessee 
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are 
classified as operating leases, Payments made under operating leases {net of any incentives received 
from the lessor) are charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the 
period of the lease. 

(g) Impairment of non-financial assets 

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for 
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An 
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable 
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are 
separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). 

(h) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions and bank 
overdrafts, which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

12 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2017 

(i) Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, 
less allowance for doubtful debts. 

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. 

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount 
of the loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income within 'other expenses' . When a 
trade receivable is uncollectible , it is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against 'other expenses' in the 
statement of comprehensive income. 

U) Financial instruments 

Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the financial instrument, and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by 
transaction costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured initially 
at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities are described below. 

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset 
expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred. 

A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires. 

Financial assets 
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets 
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets of the Company include assets classified 
as loans and receivables. The Company currently has no financial assets designated as 'fair value 
through profit or loss', held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale financial assets . 

All financial assets are subject to review for impairment at least at each reporting date to identify whether 
there is any objective evidence that a finandal asset is impaired. 

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss are presented 
within finance costs, finance income or other financial items, except for impairment of trade receivables 
which is presented within other expenses. 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are 
not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Company provides money, goods or services 
directly to a debtor with no intention of selling the receivable. Loans and receivables are included in 
trade and other receivables in the statement of financial position. Receivables are considered for 
impairment when they are past due or when other objective evidence is received that a specific 
counterparty will default. Receivables that are not considered to be individually impaired are reviewed 
for impairment in Companies, which are determined by reference to the industry and region of a 
counterparty and other shared credit risk characteristics . The impairment loss estimate is then based 
on recent historical counterparty default rates for each identified Company . 

Financial liabilities 
The Company's financial liabilities include loans and trade and other payables . The Company currently 
has no financial liabilities designated as 'fair value through profit or loss'. 

13 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2017 

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 
except for financial liabilities held for trading that are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or 
losses recognised in profit or loss. 

(k) Inventories 

Inventories comprise goods purchased for resale and are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value. Cost is based on the weighted average method of calculation. 

The Company periodically reviews the value of items in inventory and provides write-downs or write-offs 
of inventory based on its assessment of market conditions. 

The amount of the inventory allowance is the difference between the carrying amount and the expected 
net realisable value. Movements in the inventory allowance are recognised in profit or loss within the 
statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incurred. 

(I) Property, plant and equipment 

All property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment. Historical 
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are 
charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incurred. 

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost or revalued 
amounts, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives, as foUows: 

Flxtures and fittings 
Office machinery · 
Plant and equipment 

3- 33 years 
3-18 years 
4 - 15 years 

3.0% 36.0% 
5.5% 28.8% 
6.5% 25.2% 

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 
date. 

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to lts recoverable amount if the asset's carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are 
included in the profit or loss component within the statement of comprehensive income during the financial 
period in which they are incurred. 

(m) Intangible assets 

Computer software 
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring 
to use the specific software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives (3 to 5 years). 

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an 
expense as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the development of identifiable and unique 
software products controlled by the Company, and that will probably generate economic benefits 
exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets. Costs include the employee costs 
incurred as a result of developing software and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. 

14 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2017 

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated useful 
lives (not exceeding 3 years) . 

(n) Trade and other payables 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of 
the financial year and which are unpaid . The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days 
of recognition . 

(o) Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events ; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the 
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement 
is determined by conside ring the class of obligations as a whole . A provision is recognised even if the 
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be 
small. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the 
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the item, value of money and 
the risks specific to the obligation . 

(p) Employee benefits 

Wages and salaries, long service leave, annual leave and sick leave 
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick 
leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in other payables in 
respect of employees' services up to the reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected to be 
paid when the liabilities are settled. 

(q) Financial instruments by category 

All financia l assets are classified as loans and receivables . The financial liabilities are all classified as 
measured at amortised cost. Therefore no additional disclosure has been included . 

3. Changes in accounting policies and new accounting standards 

A number of new and revised standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2016 , 
but none of these amendments has had a material impact on the Company as they are largely of the nature 
of clarification of existing requirements . 

New NZ IFRS standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective 

NZ IFRS 9 - Financial instruments (effective date from 1 January 2018) 
NZ IFRS 9 Introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets and 
liabilities. 

These requirements improve and simplify the approach for classification and measurement of financial assets 
compared with the requirements of NZ IAS 39. The main changes are: 

• Financial assets that are debt instruments will be classified based on: 
(i) the objective of the entity's business model for managing the financial assets; and 
(ii) the characteristics of the contractual cash flows . 

15 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued} 
for the year ended 31 March 20.17 

• Allows an irrevocable election on inltlal recognition to present gains and losses on investments in 
equity instruments that are not held for trading in other comprehensive income (instead of in profit or 
loss). Dividends in respect of these investments that are a return on investment can be recognised in 
profit or loss and there is no impairment or recycling on disposal of the instrument. 

• Introduces a "fair vaJue through other comprehensive income" measurement category for particular 
simple debt instruments. 

• Financial assets can be designated and measured at fair value through profit or loss at initial 
recognition if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition 
inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities, or recognising the gains and 
losses on them, on different bases. 

• Where the fair value option is used for financial liabilities the change in fair value is to be accounted 
for as follows: 

(i) The change attributable to changes in credit risk are presented in other comprehensive 
income (OCI); and 
(ii) The remaining change is presented in profit or loss. 

If this approach creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch in the profit or loss, the effect of the changes 
ln credit risk are also presented in profit or loss. Otherwise, the following requirements have generally 
been carried forward unchanged from NZ IAS 39 into NZ IFRS 9: 

(l} Classification and measurement of financial liabilities; and 
(ii) Derecognition requirements for financial assets and liabilities. 

NZ IFRS 9 also contains a new impairment model based on expected credit losses. The model makes use 
of more forward-looking information. In applying this forward-looking approach a distinction is made 
between 

(a) Financial instruments that have not deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition 
or that have low credit risk; and 

(b) Financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition 
and whose credit risk is not low. 

Finally, NZ IFRS 9 provides new guidance on the application of hedge accounting. 

Management has yet to complete a comprehensive assessment of the potential impact of the standard 
although based on a high level understanding, the standard is not expected to result in significant change 
to the financial statements. 

NZ IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers (effective date from 1 January 2018) 
The IASB and the XRB have now published NZ IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and it: 

• replaces NZ IAS 18 Revenue, NZ IAS 11 Construction Contracts and some revenue-related 
Interpretations, 

• establishes a new control-based revenue recognition model, 
• changes the basis for deciding whether revenue is to be recognised over time or at a point in time, 
• provides new and more detailed guidance on specific topics, 
• expands and improves disclosures about revenue. 

In particular, NZ IFRS 15 lncludes important new guidance on: 
• contracts invo!vlng the delivery of two or more goods or services when to account separately for 

the Individual performance obligations in a multiple element arrangement, how to allocate the 
transaction price, and when to combine contracts timing - whether revenue is required to be 
recognized over time or at a single point in time, 

• variable prrcing and credit risk - addressing how to treat arrangements with variable or contingent 
{e.g. performance-based) pricing, and introducing an overall constraint on revenue, 

• time value - when to adjust a contract prlce for a financing component, and 
• various specific issues, such as non-cash consideration and asset exchanges, contract costs, 

rights of return and other customer options, supplier repurchase options, warranties, principal 

16 
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versus agent, licencing, breakage, non-refundable upfront fees , and consignment and bill-and-hold 
arrangements . 

Management has yet to complete a comprehensive assessment of the potential impact of the standard 
although based on a high level understanding, the standard is not expected to result in significant change 
to the financial statements . 

NZ IFRS 16 - Leases (effective date from 1 January 2019) 
In February 2016 the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board approved the issue of NZ IFRS 16 Leases. 
The new lease accounting standard j:)rovides much-improved transparency and comparability of 
companies' lease assets and lease liabilities for investors and other users of financial statements . 

The Standard eliminates the classification of leases as either operating leases or finance leases. Instead, 
there is a single lessee model which requires a lessee to recognise on the statement of financial position 
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of 
low value. 

other matters to note about this replacement standard is that it: 
• changes the definition of a lease, 
• sets requirements on how to account for the asset and liability, including complexities such 

as non-lease elements , variable lease payments and option periods, 
• provides exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low value assets, 
• changes the accounting for sale and leaseback arrangements , and 
• requires more detailed disclosures. 

NZ IFRS 16 will not have any effect on the total amount of cash flows reported but it is expected to have 
an effect on the presentation of cash flows. This is because, applying NZ !AS 17 Leases, cash flows relating 
to operating leases are presented as cash flows from operating activities while applying NZ IFRS 16 will 
result in the presentation within financial activities of cash flows relating to the repayment of principal on 
lease liabilities. 

The accounting requirements for lessors are substantially the same as those in NZ !AS 17. A lessor, 
therefore, continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and continues to account 
for those two types of leases differently . 

Management has yet to complete a comprehensive assessment of the potential impact of the standard 
although based on a high level understanding, the standard is not expected to result in significant change 
to the financial statements . 

The Company does not intend to adopt any of the new pronouncements before their effective dates. 

Changes in accounting policies 
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous reporting period. 

4. Financial risk management 

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks namely market risk (including interest rate 
risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company is not exposed 
to any foreign exchange risk and does not enter into derivatives . 

Risk management is carried out by the Management Team and Finance Department under policies 
approved by the Board of Directors. 

17 
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(a) Interest rate risk 

The Company's main interest rate risk arises from interest rate fluctuations on bank deposits. 

(b) Credit risk 

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks as well as credit exposures 
to customers, ihcluding outstanding receivables and committed transactions. For banks only 
independently rated mainstream banks with a minimum rating of 'A' are accepted. If customers are 
Independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there ls no independent rating, the Senior 
Management will assess the credit quality of the customer taking into account its financial position, past 
experlehce and other factors. The utilisation of credit limits Is regularly monitored by Senior Management 

(c) Liquidity risk 

The Company's liquidity is managed by maintaining sufficient cash resources tor operations through 
bank deposits. 

Detai[ed cash flow forecasts are prepared by senior management and reviewed on a regular basis to 
ensure that cash flows and cash requirements are in line with expectations. 

(d) Capital management 

The Company's capital comprises retained earnings and related party loan, repayable on demand. 

When managing capital, management's objective is to ensure that the Company has a sufficient capital 
base for its purpose of providing procurement, distribution and management services to the 
shareholders. 

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. 

5. Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

18 
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(a) Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements 

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting 
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that 
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year are discussed below: 

(i) Income taxes 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset in accordance with NZ IAS 12 Income Taxes. 
Deferred tax has been calculated on the assumption that there will be no change in tax law or 
circumstances of the Company that will result in tax losses not being available to the Company in the 
future. 

(ii) Estimation of useful lives of assets 
The estimation of the useful lives of assets has been based on historical experience. Adjustments to 
useful lives are made when considered necessary. 
(iii) Impairment of assets 
The Company determines whether assets are impaired at least on an annual basis. 
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9. Income tax expense 

(a) Income tax: expense 

Current tax 
Deferred tax 

(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax 
payable 

Profit/ (loss) before income tax expense 
Tax at the New Zealand tax rate of 28% 

Adjusted for: 

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible in calculating taxable income: 
Income tax expense 

(c) Imputation Tax Credit account 

Opening Balance 
Movement 
Closing Balance 

2017 2016 
$000 $000 

29 40 
(22) {30) 

7 10 

2017 2016 
$000 $000 

7 10 
7 10 

2017 2016 
$000 $000 

282 284 
(2) 

282 282 

20 
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10. Cash and cash equivalents 

11. Trade and other receivables 

12. Inventories 

Finished goods 

No amounts have been pledged as security (2016: $nil). 

ft 
~ 

2017 
$000 

5,336 
5,336 

2017 
$000 

922 
751 

48 
1,721 

2016 
$000 

5,237 
5,237 

2016 
$000 

938 
1,359 

119 
2 416 

2017 2016 
$000 $000 

4,796 4,564 

21 
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13. Property, plant and equipment 

Year ended 31 March 2017 
Opening net book value 
Additions 
Depreciation 
Closing net book value 

At 31 March 2017 
Cost 
Accumulated depreciation 

Net book value 

Year ended 31 March 2016 
Opening net book value 
Additions 
Depreciation 
Closing net book value 

At 31 March 2016 
Cost 
Accumulated depreciation 

Net book value 

Fixtures and 
fittings 

$000 

51 
8 

(8} 
51 

149 
{98} 

51 

59 

(8) 
51 

141 

(90} 
51 

No assets are held under finance leases {2016: $nil). 

Office 
machinery 

$000 

69 
11 

{43) 
37 

604 
{567) 

37 

40 
60 

(31} 
69 

593 

(524} 
69 

No security is given to any party in relation to the Company's assets (2016: $nil). 

14. Intangible assets 

Opening net book value 
Additions 
Amortisation charge 
Closing net book value 

Cost 
Accumulated amortisation 
Net book value 

Remaining amortisation period 
The remaining amortisation period for computer software is up to three years. 

Plant and 
equipment 

$000 

7 

(3} 
4 

18 
(14} 

4 

9 
1 

(3} 
7 

18 
(11} 

7 

2017 
$000 

90 
43 

(76) 
57 

908 
(851} 

57 

Total 
$000 

127 
19 

(54} 
92 

771 
(679} 

92 

108 
61 

{42} 
127 

752 
(625) 

127 

2016 
$000 

176 
44 

{130} 
90 

865 
(775} 

90 

22 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements ( continued) 
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15. Trade and other payables 

16. Deferred tax asset 

(a) The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to: 

Deferred tax assets 

(b) Movements: 
Opening balance 
Credited to the statement of comprehensive income 
Closing balance at 31 March 

(c) Expected settlement: 
Later than 12 months 

(d) Unrecognised deferred tax 

2017 
$000 

6,124 
1,775 

209 
899 

9,007 

2017 
$000 

79 
72 

151 

129 
22 

151 

151 
151 

2016 
$000 

7,021 
1,399 

163 
857 

9,440 

2016 
$000 

71 
58 

129 

99 
30 

129 

129 
129 

The utilisation of deferred tax assets is dependent on future taxable profits in excess of the profits arising 
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences . 

17. Retained earnings 

Opening balance 

Balance at end of year 

2017 2016 
$000 $000 

98 
(7) 
91 

108 
(1 O) 

98 

23 
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18. Reconciliation of profit after income tax to net cash inflow from operating activities 

2017 2016 
$000 $000 

(7} (10} 
130 171 

274 (374) 
742 (156) 

(231) {799) 
(469} 1,532 
(284) 533 

7 13 
162 910 

19. Events occurring after the reporting date 

No events requiring adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements occurred after the reporting date 
(2016: $nil). 

20. Contingencies 

As at 31 March 2017 the Company had no contingent liabilities or assets (2016: $nil). 

21. Commitments 

(a) Capital commitments 
There are no capital commitments at the reporting date (2016: $nil). 

(b) Lease commitments: Company as lessee 

Operating leases 
The Company leases premises, motor vehicles, and plant and equipment The Company has the right to 
renew the premises lease subject to a redetermination of the lease rental by the lessor. There are no 
renewal options or options to purchase in respect of the plant and equipment and motor vehicles held under 
operating leases. 

There are no other restrictions on use. 

2017 
$000 

109 
86 

195 

2016 
$000 

124 
149 
273 

24 
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22. Key management personnel 

Key management p~ 1 
management team. ~ 

2_3. Related party transactions 

(a) Directors 
The persons who were directors of the Company during the reporting period are as follows: 

8 Corban CNZM QSO 
T Livingstone MNZM 
A Bonner 
C Barbour 
D McAtee r 
N Henderson 
J Clews CNZM QSO JP 
R Dallow MNZM QPM JP 
S Tollestr up 
L Adams 
S Coney QSO 
P Hulse 

(b) Transactions with related parties 

1 Apr il 2016 to 31 March 2017 
1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 
1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 
1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 
1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 
1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 
1 Apr il 2016 to 1 November 2016 
1 April 20 16 to 1 November 2016 
1 April 2016 to 1 November 2.016 
1 November 2016 to 31 March 2017 
1 November 2016 to 31 March 2017 
1 November 2016 to 31 March 2017 

The Company 's shareholders are Portage Licensing Trust and Waitakere Licensing Trust. Both Trusts own 
50% of the Company's shares. 

25 
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The following transactions occurred with other related parties: 

(c) Outstanding balances 

The following balances are outstanding at the reporting date in relation to transactions with related parlies: 

2017 2016 
$000 $000 

751 1,359 

1,775 1,399 

3,000 3,000 

The loans are for working capital to fund the setvices provided by Company to lts shareholders. The loans 
are interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand, therefore the impact of discounting is insignificant. 

Fair values 
As all related parties transactions are on an at call basis the fair value (minus any impairment allowance) is 
considered to be the values as stated in the financial statements. 

Credit risk 
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the higher of the carrying value and fair value of 
each class of receivables mentfoned above. The Company does not hold any collateral as security. Refer to 
note 4 for more information oh the risk management policy of the Company. 

Impaired receivables and receivables past due 
there are no amounts due from shareholders that are impaired at reporting date (2016: $nil). 

Bad debt expense 
No bad debt expense was recognised on shareholder balances this year (2016: $nil}. 

(d) Guarantees 
There are no guarantees given or made for any financial obligations incurred or owed by the Company to 
related parties. 

26 
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The Company has been set-up for the purpose of providing procurement, distribution and management 
services to the shareholders . The shareholding trusts have confirmed their willingness to continue to provide 
financial support to West Auckland Trust Services Limited to enable the Company to meet its obligations as 
they fall due. 

24. Share capital 

Ordinary shares issued 

2017 

Number 
18 

$ 

2016 

Number 
18 

$ 

All ordinary shares rank equally with one vote attached to each fully paid ordinary share. Ordinary shares do 
not have a par value. 

/j 
27 
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!Attachment 2.5: WATS Audited Financial Statement· 201sj 

Redactions under section 7(2)(h) and (j) of 
LGOIMA: Protection of commercial 
Information to enable to conduct of 
commercial activity without prejudice and to 
ensure that official Information Is not used 
for improper gain or advantage. 
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Directors 
Brian Corban CNZM, QSO 
Timothy Livingstone MNZM 
Andrew Bonner 
Campbell Barbour 
Dianne Williams (formerly McAteer) 
Sandra Coney QSO 
Neil Henderson 
Lynette Adams 
Penelope Hulse 

Shareholders 

9 Shares (50.00%) - Waitakere Licensing Trust 

9 Shares (50.00%) - Portage Licensing Trust 

Registered office 
3044 Great North Road 
New Lynn 
Auckland 
New Zealand 

Nature of business 
The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Company are procurement , warehousing, 
distribution and management services for Waitakere and Portage Licensing Trusts . 

Company number 
478633 

Auditor 
Grant Thornton 
152 Fanshawe Street 
Auckland 
New Zealand 

Solicitors 
Price Baker Berridge 
87 Central Park Drive 
Henderson 
Auckland 
New Zealand 

Bankers 
Bank of New Zealand (BNZ) 
373 Great North Road 
Henderson 
Auckland 
New Zealand 
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WEST AUCKLAND TRUST SERVICES LIMITED 
DIRECTORS' REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the annual report of West Auckland Trust Services Limited, 
incorpora ting the financial statements and the independent auditor's report, for the year ended 
31 March 2018. 

The Shareholders of the Company have exercised their rights under Section 211 (3) of the Companies 
Act 1993 and agreed that this annual report need not comply with sections (a) and (e) to U) of Section 
211 (1) of the Act. 

The Directors of the Company authorised these financial statements presented on pages 7 to 27 for 
issue on 25 June 2018. 

For and on behalf of the Board 

············1' Chairman Brian Corban CNZM, QSO 

25 June 2018 
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Grant Thornton 
An instinct for growth'" 

Independent Auditor's Report 
TO THE READERS OF WEST AUCKLAND TRUST SERVICES LIMITED'S 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 

The Auditor-General is the auditor of West Auckland Trust Services Limited (the Company). The 
Auditor-General has appointed me, Alec Flood, using the staff and resources of Grant Thornton, to 
carry out the audit of the financial statements, on his behalf. 

Opinion 

We have audited: 

the financial statements of the Company on pages 7 to 27 that comprises the statement of 
financial position as at 31 March 2018, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, and the notes 
ta the financial statements that include accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion the financial statements of the Company on pages 7 to 27: 

present fairly, in all material respects: 

- its financial position as at 31 March 2018; and 

its financial pertorrnance and cash flows for the year then ended; and 

comply with generally accepted accountlng practice in New Zealand in accordance with the 
New Zealand equivalents of International Financial Reporting Standards. 

Our audit was completed on 25 June 201 B. This is the date at which our opinion is expressed. 

The basis for our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of the Board of 
Directors and our responsibilities relating to the financial statements, we comment on other 
information, and we explain our independence, 

Basis for opinion 

We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-General's Auditing Standards, which 
incorporate the Professional and Ethical Standards and the International Standards on Auditing (New 
Zealand) issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described In the Responsibilities of the auditor section of our report 

We have fulfilled our responsibilities in accordance with the Auditor-General's Auditing Standards. 

We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 
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Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the financial statements 

The Board of Directors is responsible on behalf of the Company for preparing financial statements 
that are fairly presented and that comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand . 

The Board of Directors is responsible for such internal control as it determ ines is necessary to enable 
it to prepare financial statements that are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or 
error . 

In preparing the financial statements , the Board of Directors is responsible on behalf of the Company 
for assess ing the Company 's ability to continue as a going concern . The Board of Directors is also 
responsible for disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting , unless the Board of Directors intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Director 's responsibilities arise from the Compan ies Act 1993. 

Responsibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole, 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor 's report 
that includes our opin ion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarante e that an audit carried out in 
accordance with the Auditor-General's Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstate ment 
when it exists. Misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts or disclosures , and can arise 
from fraud or error . Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the decisions of readers taken on the basis of these 
financial statements . 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditor-General 's Audit ing Standards, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professiona l scepticism throughout the audit. Also: 

we identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements , whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respons ive to those risks , and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opin ion . The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations , or the override of internal control. 

we obtain an understanding of internal contro l relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances , but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company 's internal control. 

we evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors . 

we conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by 
the Board of Directors and, based on the audit evidence obtained , whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or condit ions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern . If we conclude that a materia l uncerta inty 
exists , we are required to draw attent ion in our auditor 's report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements , if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion . Our 
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conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date. of our auditor's report 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern, 

we evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner !hat achieves fair presentation, 

we communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, inc[uding any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

Our responsibilities arise from the Public Audit Act 2001. 

Other Information 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
Directors' Report on page 3, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report 
thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other Information and we do not express 
any form of audit opinion or assurance conclusion thereon, 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information. In doing so, we consider whether the other information ls materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If, based on our work, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information; we are required to report that fact We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Independence 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the independence requirements of the 
Auditor-General's Auditing Standards, which incorporate the Independence requirements of 
Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (Revised): Code of Ethk;s for Assurance Practitioners issued by 
the New Zeatand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. 

In addition to the audit, we have carried out engagements in the areas of lax compliance, which are 
compatible with those independence requirements. Other than the audit and these engagements, we 
have no relationship with, or interests in, the Company. 

Alec Flood 
Grant Thornton 
On behalf of the Auditor-General 
Auckland, New Zealand 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 
Financial Statements 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
for the year ended 31 March 2018 

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes . 
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Statement of Financial Position 
as at 31 March 2018 

2018 2017 
Notes $000 $000 

Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 10 5,153 5,336 
Trade and other receivables 11 1,916 1,721 
Inventories 12 4,802 4/96 
Total current assets 11,871 11,853 

Non current assets 

13 104 92 
14 58 57 
16 149 151 

311 300 

Total assets 12,182 12,153 

Current liabilities 

Trade and other payables 15 9,094 9,007 
Shareholder loans 23 3,000 3,000 
Income tax payable 10 55 
Total current liabilities 12,104 12,062 

Total liabilities 12,104 12,062 

Net assets 78 91 

Equity 
Share capital 24 
Retained earnings 17 78 91 

Total equity 78 91 

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 



West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 31 March 2018 

e ve t te ent  n es in it  s  e e  in n n ti n it  t e n in  n tes  
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West Auckland Trust Services Limited 

Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended 31 March 2018 

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2018 

1. General information 

West Auckland Trust Services Limited (the Company) is a limited liability Company registered under the 
Companies Act 1993. The Company is incorporated and domiciled in New Zealand. These financial 
statements have been prepared to fulfil obligations under the Companies Act 1993 and the Financial 
Reporting Act 2013 . 

The Board of the Company do not have the power to amend these financial statements once issued. 

The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Company are procurement, warehousing, 
distribution and management services for the Waitakere and Portage Licensing Trusts. 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. 

(a) Basis of preparation 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of 
generally accepted accounting practices in New Zealand (NZ GAAP), the Companies Act 1993, and 
other authoritative pronouncements issued by the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board. They 
have also been prepared under the assumption that the Company operates on a going concern basis . 

For the purposes of complying with NZ GAAP, the Company is a for-profit entity. Compliance with New 
Zealand Accounting Standards results in full compliance with New Zealand equivalents to International 
Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) and the Tier 1 for-profit reporting entity requirements set out 
by the New Zealand Accounting Standards Board. 

Historical cost convention 
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. 

Critical accounting estimates and judgements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with NZ IFRS requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates . It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying 
the Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, 
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in 
note 5. 

(b) Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency') . The financial 
statements are presented in New Zealand dollars, which is the Company's functional and presentation 
currency . The Company does not transact in foreign currencies. 

All values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($000) unless otherwise stated . 

(c) Revenue recognition 

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of goods and services, net of Goods and Services Tax . 
Revenue is recognised as follows : 

(i) Sale of goods and services 
Sales of goods and services are recognised when the risks and rewards of ownership have transferred 
to the customer and collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured . 

1. 
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(ii) Interest income 
Interest Income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. 

(iii) Management services 
Management services income is recognised at the time the services are provided. 

(d) Income tax 

The income tax expense or revenue for the period Is the total of the current period's taxable income based 
on the income tax rate adjusted for any prior years' under/over provisions, and movements in the deferred 
tax balance except where the movement in deferred tax is atlrlbulable to a movement in reserves. 

Movements In deferred tax are attributable to temporary differences between the tax base of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax 
assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to apply when the 
assets are recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates which are enacted or substantively 
enacted at balance date. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only to the 
extent that it Is probable that future taxable amounts wilf be available to utilise those temporary differences 
and losses against. 

The income tax expense or revenue attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also 
recognised directly In equity. The associated currenl or deferred tax balances are recognised In these 
accounts. 

(e) Goods and Services Tax {GST) 

The statement of comprehensive income has been prepared so that all components are stated exclusive 
of GST. All items in the statement of financial position are stated net of GST, with the exception of 
receivables and payables, which include GST lrlvolced. 

(f) Leases 

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are 
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received 
from the lessor) are charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the 
period of the lease. 

(g) Impairment of non-financial assets 

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for 
impairment Assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation are reviewed ror impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An 
impairment loss is recognised fort he amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable 
amount. The recoverable amount Is the higher or an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels tor which there are 
separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). 

(h) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions and bank 
overdrafts, which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 
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(i) Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, 
less allowance for doubtful debts. 

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. 

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount 
of the loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income within 'other expenses'. When a 
trade receivable is uncollectible, ii is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against 'other expenses' in the 
statement of comprehensive income. 

(j) Financial instruments 

Recognition, initial measurement and derecognition 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the financial instrument, and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by 
transaction costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured initially 
at fair value. Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities are described below. 

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset 
expire, or when the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred. 

A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires . 

Financial assets 
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets 
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets of the Company include assets classified 
as loans and receivables which are measured at amortised cost. The Company currently has no 
financial assets designated as 'fair value through profit or loss', held-to-maturity investments or 
available-for-sale financial assets. 

All financial assets are subject to review for impairment at least at each reporting date to identify whether 
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. 

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss are presented 
within finance costs, finance income or other financial items, except for impairment of trade receivables 
which is presented within other expenses. 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are 
not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Company provides money, goods or services 
directly to a debtor with no intention of selling the receivable. Loans and receivables are included in 
trade and other receivables in the statement of financial position. Receivables are considered for 
impairment when they are past due or when other objective evidence is received that a specific 
counterparty will default. Receivables that are not considered to be individually impaired are reviewed 
for impairment in Companies, which are determined by reference to the industry and region of a 
counterparly and other shared credit risk characteristics. The impairment loss estimate is then based 
on recent historical counterparty default rates for each identified Company. 

Financial liabilities 
The Company's financial liabilities include loans, and trade and other payables. The Company currently 
has no financial liabilities designated as 'fair value through profit or loss' . 
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Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 
except for financial liabilities held for trading that are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or 
losses recognised In profit or loss. 

(k) Inventories 

Inventories comprise goods purchased for resale and are valued at the lower of cost and net reallsable 
value. Cost is based on the weighted average method of calculation. 

The Company periodically reviews the value of items in inventory and provides write-downs or write-offs 
of inventory based on its assessment of market condltlons. 

The amount of the inventory allowance is the difference between the carrying amount and the expected 
net realisable value. Movements in the inventory allowance are recognised In profit or loss within the 
statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incurred. 

(I) Property, plant and equipment 

All property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment. Historical 
cost Includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the Items. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are 
charged to the statement of comprehensive income during the financial period In which they are incurred. 

Depreciation on assets is calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost or revalued 
amounts, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives, as follows: 

Fixtures and fittings 
Office machinery 
Plant and equipment 

3- 33 years 
3 -18 years 
4 15 years 

3.0% 36.0% 
5,5% -28.8% 
6,5% 25.2% 

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting 
date. 

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying 
amount is greater than Its estimated recoverable amount. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are 
included in the profit or loss component within the statement of comprehensive income during the financial 
period In which they are incurred. 

(m) Intangible assets 

Computer software 
Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring 
to use the specific software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives (3 to 5 years). 

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an 
expense as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the development of identifiable and unique 
software products controlled by the Company, and that will probably generate economic benefits 
exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets. Costs include the employee costs 
Incurred as a result of developing software and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. 
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Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated useful 
lives (not exceed ing 3 years). 

(n) Trade and other payables 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of 
the financial year and which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days 
of recognition . 

(o) Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events ; it Is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the 
amount has been reliably estimated . Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses . 

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement 
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole . A provision is recognised even if the 
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be 
small. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the 
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the item, value of money and 
the risks specific to the obligation. 

(p) Employee benefits 

Wages and salaries, long service leave, annual leave and sick leave 
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick 
leave expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in other payables in 
respect of employees' services up to the reporting date and are measured at the amounts expected to be 
paid when the liabilities are settled . 

3. Changes in accounting policies and new accounting standards 

A number of new and revised standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2017 
and there was one standard that had a significant impact on the disclosures made in these financial 
statements and that was: 

Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to NZ /AS 7) 
The amendments to NZ IAS 7 'Statements of Cash Flows', effective 1 January 2017, require the Company 
to provide disclosures about the changes in liabilities from financing activities. The Company categorises 
those changes into changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes with further sub-categories as 
required by NZ IAS (see Note 25). 

New NZ IFRS standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective 

The Company does not intend to adopt any of the new standards before their effective dates 

NZ IFRS 9 - Financial instruments (effective date from 1 January 2018) 
NZ IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets and 
liabilities. These requirements improve and simplify the approach for classification and measurement of 
financial assets compared with the requirements of NZ IAS 39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement ". 
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Subsequent measurement of the financial statements shall be at 

a) Amortised cost 
b) Fair value through profit and loss 
c) Fair value through other comprehensive income 

The following requirements have generatly been carried forward unchanged from NZ IAS 39 Into NZ IFRS 
9: 

(i) Classification and measurement of financial liabilities; and 
(ii) Derecognition requirements for financial assets and liabilities. 

NZ IFRS 9 also contains a new impairment model based on expected credit losses. The model makes use 
of more forward-looking information. In applying this forward-looking approach a distinction is made 
between 

(a) Financial instruments that have not deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial recognition 
or that have low credit risk; and 

{b) Financial Instruments that have deteriorated significantly In credit quality since initial recognition 
and whose credit risk is not low. 

Management has yet to complete a comprehensive assessment of the potential impact of the standard 
although based on a high level understanding, the standard is not expected to result In significant change 
to the financial statements. The classification of the Company's financial instruments are not expected to 
change following the adoption of the new standard. 

NZ IFRS 15 ~ Revenue from contracts with customers (effective date from 1 January 2018) 
NZ IFRS 15 establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of financial statements 
about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity's 
contracts with customers. The core principle of NZ IFRS 15 is that the Company wiU need to 
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount 
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods 
or services. 

The Company's revenue is mostly derived through the fulfilllng of customer orders as they are submitted 
and does not normally involve a multiple element arrangement, therefore the introduction of this standard 
is not expected to result in a significant change to the financial statements. 

NZ IFRS 16- Leases (effective date from 1 January 2019) 
NZ IFRS 16 changes the relevant information to be reported by lessors and lessees with a view to 
faithful representation of information to the users of financial statements so they can assess the 
effect leases have on cash flow, financial performance and the financial position of the entity. The 
standard requires the lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for the rights and obligations created 
by those leases. Lessors reporting requirements are similar to the previous standard NZ !AS 17 
"Leases". 

Management has yet to complete a comprehensive assessment of the potential impact of the standard 
although based on a high level understanding, the standard is not expected to result in significant change 
to the financial statements. 

Changes in accounting policies 

The accounting policies adopted for recognition and measurement are consistent with those of the previous 
reporting period. 
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4. Financial risk management 

The Company's activities expose ii to a variety of financial risks namely market risk (including interest rate 
risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company is not exposed 
to any foreign exchange risk and does not enter into derivatives. 

Risk management is carried out by the Management Team and Finance Department under policies 
approved by the Board of Directors. 

(a) Interest rate risk 

The Company's main interest rate risk arises from interest rate fluctuations on bank deposits. 

At 31 March 2018, if interest rates had changed by +/- 1 % from the year end rates of 1.65% (2017: 
1.65%) with all other variables held constant, post tax profit for the year would have been $52,000 
lower/higher {2017: $53,000 lower/higher). 

(b) Credit risk 

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks as well as credit exposures 
to customers, including outstanding receivables and committed transactions. For banks only 
independently rated mainstream banks with a minimum rating of at least 'A' are accepted. If customers 
are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, Senior 
Management will assess the credit quality of the customer taking into account its financial position, past 
experience and other factors . The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored by Senior Management. 

(c) Liquidity risk 

The Company's liquidity is managed by maintaining sufficient cash resources for operations through 
bank deposits. 

(d) Capital management 

The Company's capital comprises retained earnings and shareholder loan, repayable on demand. 

When managing capital , management's objective is to ensure that the Company has a sufficient capital 

r_;,;;;1"lt :_\ 
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base for its purpose of providing procurement, distribution and management services to the 
shareholders. 

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. 

5. Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

(a) Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements 

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting 
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that 
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year are discussed below: 

(I) Income taxes 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset In accordance with NZ IAS 12 Income Taxes. 
Deferred tax has been calculated on the assumption that there will be no change in tax law or 
circumstances of the Company that will result in tax losses not being available to the Company in the 
futwre. 

(ff) Estimation of useful lives of assets 
The estimation of the useful lives of assets has been based on historical experience. Adjustments to 
useful lives are made when considered necessary. 
(iii) Impairment of assets 
The Company determines whether assets are impaired at least on an annual basis. 
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9. Income tax expense 

(a) Income tax expense 

Current tax 
Deferred tax 

(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax 
payable 

Profit/ (loss) before income tax expense 
Tax at the New Zealand tax rate of 28% 

Adjusted for : 

Tax effect of amounts wh ich are not deductible in calculating taxable income: 
Income tax expense 

2018 2017 
$000 $000 

3 29 
10 (22) 
13 7 

2018 2017 
$000 $000 

13 7 
13 7 
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12. Inventories 
2018 2017 
$000 $000 

4,802 4,796 
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13. Property, plant and equipment 

Year ended 31 March 2018 
Opening net book value 
Addit ions 
Depreciation 
Closing net book value 

At 31 March 2018 
Cost 
Accumulated depreciation 

Net book value 

Year ended 31 March 2017 
Opening net book value 
Additions 
Depreciation 
Closing net book value 

At 31 March 2017 
Cost 
Accumulated depreciation 

Net book value 

Fixtures and 
fittings 

$000 

51 
46 

{10) 
87 

194 
{107) 

87 

51 
8 

(8) 
51 

149 
(98) 

51 

No assets are held under finance leases (2017 : $nil) . 

Office 
machinery 

$000 

37 
10 

{31) 
16 

614 
{598) 

16 

69 
11 

(43) 
37 

604 
(567} 

37 

No security is given to any party in relation to the Company 's assets (2017: $nil). 

14. Intangible assets 

Opening net book value 
Additions 
Amortisation charge 
Closing net book value 

Cost 
Accumulated amortisat ion 
Net book value 

Plant and 
equipment 

$000 

4 
0 

{3) 
1 

18 
(17) 

1 

7 

(3) 
4 

18 

(14) 
4 

2018 
$000 

57 
25 

(24) 
58 

933 
(875) 

58 

Total 
$000 

92 
56 

{44) 
104 

826 
(722) 

104 

127 
19 

(54) 
92 

771 
(679) 

92 

2017 
$000 

90 
43 

(76) 
57 

908 
(851) 

57 
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15. Trade and other payables 

2018 2017 
$000 $000 

7,392 6,124 
995 1,775 
279 209 
428 899 

9,094 9,007 

16. Deferred tax asset 

2018 2017 
$000 $000 

(a) The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to: 

Deferred tax assets 
104 79 
45 72 

Net deferred tax assets 149 151 

{b) Movements: 
Opening balance 151 129 
(Debited )/Credited (2) 22 
Closing balance at 31 March 149 151 

{c) Expected settlement: 
Later than 12 months 149 151 

149 151 
(d) Unrecognised deferred tax 
The utilisation of deferred tax assets is dependent on future taxable profits in excess of the profits arising 
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences. 

17. Retained earnings 

........ 
Balance at end of year 

2018 2017 
$000 $000 

91 
(13) 

78 

98 
(7) 
91 
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18. Reconciliation of profit after income tax to net cash inflow from operating activities 

19. Events occurring after the reporting date 

No events requiring adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements occurred after the reporting date 
(2017: $nil). 

20. Contingencies 

As at 31 March 2018 the Company had no contingent liabilities or assets (2017: $nil} . 

21. Commitments 

(a) Capital commitments 
There are no capital commitments at the reporting date (2017: $nil) . 

(b) Lease commitments: Company as lessee 

Operating leases 
The Company leases premises, motor vehicles , and plant and equipment. The Company has the right to 
renew the premises lease subject to a redetermination of the lease rental by the lessor . There are no 
renewal options or options to purchase in respect of the plant and equipment and motor vehicles held under 
operating leases. 

There are no other restrictions on use . 

2018 
$000 

113 
85 

198 

2017 
$000 

109 
86 

195 
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22, Key management personnel 

Key man~gement personnel of the Company are the Board of directors and the members of the executive 
management team. 

23. Related party transactions 

(a) Directors 
The persons who were directors of the Company during the reporting period are as follows: 

B Corban CNZM QSO 
T Livingstone MNZM 
A Bohner 
C Barbour 
D Williams (formerly McAleer) 
N Henderson 
LAdams 
SConeyQSO 
P Hulse 

(b) Transactions with related parties 

1 Aprll 2017 to 31 March 2018 
1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 
1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 
1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 
1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 
1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 
1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 
1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 
1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018 

The Company's shareholders are Portage Licensing Trust and Waitakere Licensing Trust. Both Trusts own 
50% of the Company's shares. 
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All related party transactions have been completed on an arm's length basis on standard operating terms . 

(c) Outstanding balances 

The following balances are outstanding at the reporting date in relation to transactions with related parties: 

2018 2017 
$000 $000 

740 751 

995 1,775 

Fair values 
As all related parties transactions are on an at call basis the fair value (minus any impairment allowance) is 
considered to be the values as stated in the financial statements. 
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Credit risk 
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the higher of the carrying value and fair value of 
each class of receivables mentioned above. The Company does not hold any collateral as security. Refer to 
note 4 for more Information on the risk management pollcy of the Company. 

Impaired receivables and receivables past due 
There are no amounts due from shareholders that are impaired at reporting date (2017: $nil). 

Bad debt expense 
No bad debt expense was recognised on shareholder balances this year (2017: $nil). 

(d) Guarantees 
There are no guarantees given or made for any financlal obligations Incurred or owed by the Company to 
related parties. 

24. Share capital 

Ordinary shares issued 

2018 

Number 
18 

$ 

2017 

Number 
18 

$ 

All ordinary shares rank equally with one vote attached to each fully paid ordinary share. Ordinary shares do 
not have a par value. 

25. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities 

The changes in the Company's liab!llties arising from financing activities can be classified as follows: 
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26. Events occurring after the reporting date 

No events requiring adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements occurred after the reporting date 
(2017: nil). 
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1Attachment3,1 SCI 2014) 

g1v1ng back 

Redactions under section 7(2)(h) and (j) of 
LGOIMA: Protection of commerclal 
information 1o enable to conduct 01 
commercial activity without prejudice and to 
ensure that official Information Is not used for 
improper gain or advantage. 

Adopted March 2014 
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE INTENT 

1: Introduction 

The SCI specifies the objectives, nature and scope of the activities to be undertaken, 
and the performance targets and other measures by which performance of WATS 
may be judged in relation to its objectives amongst other requirements. 

The SCI is reviewed annually with the shareholders and covers the 
current strategic plan period to 2015/16 financial year end. 

Vision: 

"The Trusts be recognised by our community as a respected local business that 
invests significantly in West Auckland and ensures the profitable operation of the 
business is consistent with the social responsibilities of a Licensing Trust". 

Adopted March 2014 
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3: Nature and Scope of Activities 

Portage 
Licensing 

Trust 

50% 

✓/ 
WATS Ltd 

/ _,...__ _____ _,_ 

100% 

Portage 
Operations 

/ 
/ 

, , 

/ 
✓ 

/ 

Ownership 

----------------► Management 

............... , .. -, .......................... ► Administration 

Adopted March 2014 

Waitakere 
Licensing 

Trust 

100% 

Waitakere 
Operations 
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To optimise the returns from the value of the Trusts consistent with the social 
responsibilities of a Licensing Trust. 

To ensure, insofar as it is lawfully able and commercially practicable that the 
SCI reflects the policies and objectives of Trusts. 

4: Statement of Accounting Policies 

comply with the Financial Reporting Standards and Statements of 
Standard Accounting Policies of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of New 
Zealand, and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles to the extent that this is 
practicable without disclosing commercially sensitive information, which in the view of 
the Directors, would be of value to competitors. 

The company will be subject to taxation, and accordingly normal commercial taxation 
policies will apply, including where appropriate, deferred taxation provisions. 

Adopted March 2014 



137

Operational 

1. To ensure proactive workplace safety and sound human relations polfcies are 
adhered to within the ambit of the Health & Safety in Employment Act and the 
Employment Relations Act. 

2. To ensure there is a complete and adequate management structure at outlets and 
administration level. 

3. To ensure the commerdal business complies with all regulations, acts and laws 
under which it operates. 

Licensing 

1. On behalf of the Trusts complete all returns, submissions, applications and renewals 
on time to ensure that liquor licences are maintained. 

2. Report to Trusts on amendments to Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 2012 that require 
submissions by licence holders. Complete submissions as directed by Trusts by due 
date. 

Gaming 

1. To collect and account for gaming machine proceeds by due dates as required by 
Trusts, Department of Internal Affairs and Charitable Foundation to ensure site 
licences are maintained. 

Adopted March 2014 
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--- - --- - -

I ~ -- --- --- ~ ~- - ~--- - - - -

3. To complete submissions as required 

Note: WATS responsibility with gaming is limited under the Act. Trustees as individuals are 
currently involved in making recommendations to TTCF Ltd in a role separate to WATS. 

General 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

To recognise 
our social responsibilities are also extremely important in enhancing the well

being of our owners, the community. 
- - - - --

To ensure the development 
1 - - --- --

account of the social responsibility of the Trusts and the 
aspirations of the communities they serve. 

Adopted March 2014 
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8: Good Governance 

i) Strategy development 
ii) Monitoring performance 
iii) Identifying and mitigating risk in the businesses 

A compliance programme will be developed with the following components considered: 

1. An overall policy on legislative compliance; 

2. Identification of relevant legislation and interpretation of the legislation; 

3. Development of Corporate Governance Manual relevant to the operations and 
activities; 

4. Internal audit programme to ensure compliance; 

5. Education and training of all employees on all relevant legislative requirements to 
their position; 

6. Regular monitoring of compliance programme; and 

7. Document management and retention. 

As a minimum compliance with the following Acts will be considered: 

• Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 2012 
• Resource Management Act 1991 
• Building Act 1991 
• Health and Safety in Employment Act 1991 
• Smoke Free Environments Act 1990 
• Fire Service Act 1975 
• Local Government Act 1974 and Bylaws 
• Fair Trading Act 1986 
• Consumer Guarantees Act 1993 
• Privacy Act 1993 
• Sale of Goods Act 1908 
• Gambling Act 2004 
• Employment Relations Act 2000 
• The Holidays Act 2003 
• Human Rights Act 1993 

Adopted March 2014 
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• Financial Reporting Act 1993 
• Income Tax Act 1994 and other Income Tax Legislation 
• Goods and Services Tax Act 1985 
• Commerce Act 1986 
• Injury Prevention, Rehabilitation and Compensation Act 2001 

Adopted March 2014 
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I Attachment 3.2· SCI :2015 

g1v1ng back 

Redactions under section 7(2)(h) and 
(j) of LGOIMA: Protection of 
commercial information to enable to 
conduct of commercial activity 
without prejudice and to ensure that 
offil:::ial information is not used for 
Improper gain or advantage. 

Adopted April 2015 
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE INTENT 

1: Introduction 
- - --- -- -

- - -- -

The SCI specifies the objectives , nature and scope of the activities to be undertaken , 
and the performance targets and other measures by which performance of WATS 
may be judged in relation to its objectives amongst other requirements . 

-- --- - - - - - --

,---------------,_ - - - - -- - - --~-- -- -- -

current strategic plan period to 2015/16 financial year end. 

Vision: 

"The Trusts be recognised by our community as a respected local business that 
invests significantly in West Auckland and ensures the profitable operation of the 
business is consistent with the social responsibilities of a Licensing Trust". 

Working towards this, WATS recognises the need to work closely and cooperatively 
- --- --- -,- -----7 

I - - -- - --- -- -

Adopted April 2015 
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3: Nature and Scope of Activities 

Portage 
Licensing 

Trust 

/ 
/ , WATS Ltd 

100% 
,/ .. ~-----~ .. 

Portage 
Operations 

, 

/ 
,,.,,* 

/ 

Ownership 

----------------► Management 

........................................................ ► Administration 

Adopted April 2015 
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To optimise the returns from the value of the Trusts consistent with the social 
responsibilities of a Licensing Trust. 

To ensure, insofar as ii is lawfully able and commercially practicable that the 
SCI reflects the policies and objectives of Trusts. 

4: Statement of Accounting Policies 

with the Financial Reporting Standards and Statements of 
Standard Accounting Policies of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of New 
Zealand, and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles to the extent that this is 
practicable without disclosing commercially sensitive information, which in the view of 
the Directors, would be of value to competitors. 

The company will be subject to taxation, and accordingly normal commercial taxation 
policies will apply, including where appropriate, deferred taxation provisions. 

Adopted April 2015 
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Operational 

1. To ensure proactive workplace safety and sound human relations policies are 
adhered to within the ambit of the Health & Safety in Employment Act and the 
Employment Relations Act. 

2. To ensure there is a complete and adequate management structure at outlets and 
administration level. 

3. To ensure the commercial business complies with all regulations, acts and laws 
under which It operates. 

Licensing 

1. On behalf of the Trusts complete all returns, submissions, applications and renewals 
on time to ensure that liquor licences are maintained. 

2. Report to Trusts on amendments to Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 2012 that require 
submissions by licence holders. Complete submissions as directed by Trusts by due 
date. 

Gaming 

1. To collect and account for gaming machine proceeds by due dates as required by 
Trusts, Department of Internal Affairs and Charitable Foundation to ensure site 
licences are maintained. 

Adopted April 2015 
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General 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

To recognise 
our social responsibilities are also extremely important in enhancing the well

being of our owners, the community. 

To ensure the develo§ment 1 
1account of the social responsibility of the Trusts and the 

aspirations of the communities they serve. 
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8: Good Governance 

i) Strategy development 
ii) Monitoring performance 
iii) Identifying and mitigating risk in the businesses 

A compfiance programme will be developed with the following components considered: 

1. An overall policy on legislative compliance; 

2. ldentffication of relevant legislation and interpretation of the legislatfon; 

3. Development of Corporate Governance Manual relevant to the operations and 
activities; 

4. Internal audit programme to ensure compliance; 

5. Education and training of all employees on all relevant legislative requirements to 
their posftion; 

6. Regular monitoring of compliance programme; and 

7. Document management and retention. 

As a minimum compliance with the following Acts will be considered: 

• Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 2012 
• Resource Management Act 1991 
• Building Act 1991 
• Health and Safety in Employment Act 1991 
• Smoke Free Environments Act 1990 
• Fire Service Act 1975 
• Local Government Act 1974 and Bylaws 
• Fair Trading Act 1986 
• Consumer Guarantees Act 1993 
• Privacy Act 1993 
• Sale of Goods Act 1908 
• Gambling Act 2004 

Adopted April 2015 
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• Employment Relations Act 2000 
• The Holidays Act 2003 
• Human Rights Act 1993 
• Financial Reporting Act 1993 
• Income Tax Act 1994 and other Income Tax Legislation 
• Goods and Services Tax Act 1985 
• Commerce Act 1986 
• Injury Prevention, Rehabilitation and Compensation Act 2001 

Adopted April 2015 
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jAttachment 3.3_SCl_2016 

g1v1ng back 

Redactions under section 7(2)(h) and 0) of LGOIMA: Protection of 
commercial information to enable to conduct of commercial activity without 
prejudice and to ensure that official information Is not used for improper gain 
or advantage. 

Adopted March 2016 
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE INTENT 

1: Introduction 

The SCI specifies the objectives, nature and scope of the activities to be undertaken, 
and the performance targets and other measures by which performance of WATS may 
be judged in relation to its objectives amongst other requirements . 

The SCI is reviewed annually with the shareholders and covers the 
current strategic plan period to 2018/19 financial year end. 

Vision: 

"To invest responsibly in aspirations and opportunities across West Auckland ". 

The following summarises the agreed core functions of The Trusts that WATS will focus 
on and notes the agreed areas we will avoid: 

Core Functions 
We have a long-term focus on investment, the creation of balance sheet growth 
for the community's benefit (Giving Back) 
We competitively trade for the purpose of making profit - in hospitality, 
wholesale and retail liquor, and related products, in a responsible industry 
leading way 
Our trading businesses compete in the entertainment space of people's lives; 
either entertaining at home or in our venues 

Not Our Function 
Encouraging irresponsible sale or reckless consumption of alcohol 
Operating unprofitable businesses for social well-being outcomes or other 
outcomes 

Adopted March 2016 
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3: Nature and Seo e of Activities 

Portage 
Licensing 

Trust 

50% 

,/ 
WATS Ltd 

/ __ .._ _____ _, __ 

100% 

Portage 
Operations 

, 
,/ , 

/ , 
,/ 

Ownership 

----------------► Management 

.................. ,,,_,,,,,,,,,,,_.,, ............... ► Administration 

Adopted March 2016 
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Adopted March 2016 
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To operate within the requirements of the Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 2012 
and to ensure that each Trust is maintained as a separate identity as required 
by the Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 2012 including separate financial 
accounts, records and liquor licences. 

To operate within the legal restrictions required by the Sale and Supply of 
Alcohol Act 2012 and referred to above to operate the outlets as a composite 
group for the profitable good of that group. 

To ensure, insofar as it is lawfully able and commercially practicable that the 
SCI reflects the policies and objectives of Trusts. 

4: Statement of Accountln PoHcies 

comply with the Financial Reporting Standards and Statements of Standard 
Accounting Policies of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of New Zealand, and 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles to the extent that this is practicable without 
disclosing commercially sensitive information, which in the view of the Directors, would 
be of value to competitors. 

The company will be subject to taxation, and accordingly normal commercial taxation 
policies will apply, including where appropriate, deferred taxation provisions. 

5: Ke Goals forthe eriod 2016 to FYE 2018/19 

Adopted March 2016 



154

IN HOSPITALITY: 
1) Develop network of profitable modern local brands I venues & new offers incl . 

anchor tenant position in any new key entertainment precinct(s) ; 

3) 

2) Retail leadership programme develops outstanding results (both human and 
financial) ; 

3) Category & inventory management is sophisticated, technologically supported 
and performance focussed . 

Adopted March 2016 
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Operational 

1. To ensure proactive workplace safety and sound human relations policies are adhered 
to within the ambit of the Health & Safety in Employment Act and the Employment 
Relations Act. 

2. To ensure there is a complete and adequate management structure at outlets and 
administration level. 

3. To ensure the commercial business complies with all regulations, acts and laws under 
which lt operates. 

Licensing 

1. On behalf of the Trusts complete all returns, submissions, applications and renewals 
on time to ensure that liquor licences are maintained. 

2. Report to Trusts on amendments to Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 2012 that require 
submissions by licence holders. Complete submissions as directed by Trusts by due 
date. 

Gaming 

1. 

3. 

To collect and account for gaming machine proceeds by due dates as required by 
Trusts, Department of Internal Affairs and Charitable Foundation to ensure site licences 
are maintained. 

To complete submissions as required 

Adopted March 2016 
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8: Good Governance 

i) Strategy development 
ii) Monitoring performance 
iii) Identifying and mitigating risk in the businesses 

A compliance programme will be developed with the following components considered: 

1. An overall policy on legislative compliance; 

2. Identification of relevant legislation and interpretation of the legislation; 

Adopted March 2016 
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3. Development of Corporate Governance Manual relevant to the operations and 
activities; 

4. Internal audit programme to ensure compliance; 

5. Education and training of all employees on all relevant legislative requirements to their 
position; 

6. Regular monitoring of compliance programme; and 

7. Document management and retention. 

As a minimum compliance with the following Acts will be considered: 

• Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 2012 
• Resource Management Act 1991 
• Building Act 1991 
• Health and Safety at Work Act 2015 
• Smoke Free Environments Act 1990 
• Fire Service Act 1975 
• Local Government Act 1974 and Bylaws 
• Fair Trading Act 1986 
• Consumer Guarantees Act 1993 
• Privacy Act 1993 
• Sale of Goods Act 1908 
• Gambling Act 2004 
• Employment Relations Act 2000 
• The Holidays Act 2003 
• Human Rights Act 1993 
• Financial Reporting Act 1993 
• income Tax Act 1994 and other Income Tax Legislation 
• Goods and Services Tax Act 1985 
• Commerce Act 1986 
• Injury Prevention, Rehabilitation and Compensation Act 2001 

Adopted March 2016 
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!Attachment 3.4_SCI 2017/18/19 

g1v1ng back 

TRUSTS STATEMENT 
OF CORPORA TE 

INTENT 

Redactions under section 7(2)(h) and U) 
of LGOIMA: Protection of commercial 
information to enable to conduct of 
commercial activity without prejudice 
and to ensure that official information is 
not used for Improper gain or advantage. 
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE INTENT 

The SCI specifies the objectives, nature and scope of the activities to be undertaken, 
and the performance targets. 

The SCI is reviewed annually and covers the current strategic plan period to 2018/19 
financial year end. 

Portage 
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3: Statement of Accounting Policies 

The Trusts will comply with the Financial Reporting Standards and Statements of 
Standard Accounting Policies of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of New 
Zealand, and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles to the extent that this is 
practicable without disclosing commercially sensitive information, which in the view of 
the Directors, would be of value to competitors. 

4: Key Goals for the period 2016 to 2018/2019 

IN HOSPITALITY: 
1) Develop network of profitable modern local brands / venues & new offers incl. 

anchor tenant position in any new key entertainment precinct(s); 

3) Recruit and retain industry leading managers and develop people that want a 
career in hospitality. 

IN RETAIL: 

2) Retail leadership programme develops outstanding results (both human and 
financial); 

3) Category and inventory management is sophisticated, technologically 
supported and performance focussed. 
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Community 

1. To recognise objective of The Trusts 
and that our soc1a responsr ities are also extremely Important in enhancing the well
being of our owners, the community. 

2. To ensure the development of the business takes into account social responsibility of 
the Trusts and the aspirations of the communities they serve. 

Operational 

1. To ensure proactive workplace safety and sound human relations policies are 
adhered to wfthin the ambit of the Health & Safety in Employment Act and the 
Employment Relations Act. 

2. To ensure there is a complete and adequate management structure at outlets and 
administration level. 

3. To ensure the commercial business complies with all regulations, acts and laws 
under which it operates. 

Licensing 

1. The Trusts complete all returns, submissions, applications and renewals on time to 
ensure that liquor licences are maintained. 

2. Reports to each Trusts on amendments to Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 2012 that 
require submissions by licence hofders. Complete submissions as directed by Trusts 
by due date. 

5:.;,, .GoodGovernance ~, ·.;·. 1 .• • •• : •• ., .• • ,. • • ,· .• ·.: 

I) Strategy development and consideration of the Trusts community of interests 
ii) Monitoring performance 
ill) Identifying and mitigating risk in the businesses 

A compliance programme will be developed with the following components considered: 

1. An overall policy on legislative compliance; 

2. Identification of relevant legislation and interpretation of the legislation; 
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3. Development of Corporate Governance Manual relevant to the operations and 
activities; 

4. Internal audit programme to ensure compliance; 

5. Education and training of all employees on all relevant legislative requirements to 
their position; 

6. Regular monitoring of compliance programme; and 

7. Document management and retention. 

As a minimum compliance With the following Acts will be considered: 

• Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 2012 
• Resource Management Act 1991 
• Building Act 2004 
• Health and Safety at Work Act 2015 
• Smoke Free Environments Act 1990 
• Fire Service Act 1975 
• Local Government Act 1974, 2002 and Bylaws 
• Fair Trading Act 1986 
• Consumer Guarantees Act 1993 
• Privacy Act 1993 
• Sale of Goods Act 1908 
• Gambling Act 2004 
• Employment Relations Act 2000 
• The Holidays Act 2003 
• Human Rights Act 1993 
• Financial Reporting Act 1993 
• Income Tax Act 1994 and other Income Tax Legislation 
• Goods and Services Tax Act 1985 
• Commerce Act 1986 
• Injury Prevention, Rehabilitation and Compensation Act 2001 
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Attachment 3.5 SCI 
2019-2020-

g1v1ng back 

Statement of 
Corporate Intent 

FY2019-2020 

Redactions under section 7(2}(h) and (j) of LGOIMA: Protection of commercial information to enable 
to conduct of commercial activity without prejudice and to ensure that official information is not 
used for improper gain or advantage. 
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE INTENT 

1: Introduction 

The SCI specifies the objectives, nature and scope of the activities to be undertaken, 

2 : Objectives 

Our Vision: Giving Back to West Auckland Forever 

Our Purpose: Deliver a thriving social enterprise making a difference in West 
Auckland 

The Key Pillars of our Strategy are: 
1) Community Favourability: 

A social enterprise, trusted and valued by the West Auckland community to sell 
alcohol responsibly and give back to causes, big and small , that make a difference 
locally 

2) Operational Excellence : 
Award-winning retail liquor stores, a well-managed long-term investment portfolio 
and a modern range of hospitality venues that together contribute millions to West 
Auckland each year 

3) Great People: 
A great place to work , where people develop new skills and can build a career with 
excellent training . Performance is valued and rewarded , and everyone can make 
a difference. We're a team where mates look out for each other . 

4) Asset Growth & Performance: 
A long-term focus on sound investment and the performance and growth of asset 
value for the community 's future benefit. 

Not Our Function 
Encouraging irresponsible sale or reckless consumption of alcohol 
Operating unprofitable businesses for social well-being outcomes or other 
outcomes 
Replicating or duplicating social well-be ing agencies or not-for-profit services 
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3: Nature and Scope of Activities 
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To operate within the requirements of the Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 2012 
and to ensure that each Trust is maintained as a separate identity as required 
by the Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 2012 including separate financial 
accounts, records and liquor licences. 

To operate within the legal restrictions required by the Sale and Supply of 
Alcohol Act 2012 and referred to above to operate the outlets as a composite 
group for the profitable good of that group. 

To optimise the returns from the value of the Trusts consistent with the social 
responsibilities of a Licensing Trust. 

To ensure, insofar as it is lawfully able and commercially practicable that the 
SCI reflects the policies and objectives of Trusts. 
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Operational 

1. To ensure proactive workplace safety and sound human relations policies are adhered 
to within the ambit of the Health & Safety in Employment Act and the Employment 
Relations Act. 

2. To ensure there is a complete and adequate management structure at outlets and 
administration level. 

3. To ensure the commercial business complies with all regulations, acts and laws under 
which it operates. 

Licensing 

1. On behalf of the Trusts complete all returns, submissions, applications and renewals 
on time to ensure that liquor licences are maintained. 

2. Report to Trusts on amendments to Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 2012 that require 
submissions by licence holders. Complete submissions as directed by Trusts by due 
date. 

Gaming 

1. To collect and account for gaming machine proceeds by due dates as required by 
Trusts, Department of Internal Affairs and Charitable Foundation to ensure site licences 
are maintained. 

General 

1. To recognise · The Trusts and 
that our social responsibilities are also extremely important in enhancing the well-being 
of our owners, the community. 
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4: Statement of Accounting Policies 

comply with the Financial Reporting Standards and Statements of Standard 
Accounting Policies of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of New Zealand, and 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles to the extent that this is practicable without 
disclosing commercially sensitive information, which in the view of the Directors, would 
be of value to competitors. 

' - ~- ~ - - -- - -- -

I 

I 

- -- - - - ---- -- -

5: Key Goals for the period 2019/20 to FYE 2021/22 

The plan contains several key goals that are specifically monitored and 
measured via the Annual Business Plan and review processes. 

The key goals and priorities o 
j . . • ' 

• Known as a great employer , helping grow and care for great people 
• Providing great customer experience and fair value for money 
• Balancing the number of outlets against profit 
• Achieving best return on long-term investments with low to medium risk 
• Supporting great causes, big and small, in West Auckland 
• Ensuring our community understands and values the difference we make 
• We are resilient to significant disruption 
• Always mindful our community gave us the mandate for alcohol to be sold 

responsibly through us. 
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8: Good Governance 

i) Strategy development 
ii) Monitoring performance 
iii) Identifying and mitigating risk in the businesses 
iv) Providing sound commercial advice and management for each Trust 

A compliance programme will be developed with the following components considered: 

1. An overall policy on legislative compliance; 

2. Identification of relevant legislation and interpretation of the legislation; 

3. Development of Corporate Governance Manual relevant to the operations and 
activities; 

4. Internal audit programme to ensure compliance; 
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5. Education and training of all employees on all relevant legislative requirements to their 
position; 

6. Regular monitoring of compliance programme; and 

7. Document management and retention. 

As a minimum compliance with the following Acts will be considered: 

• Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 2012 
• Resource Management Act 1991 
• Building Act 2004 
• Health and Safety at Work Act 2015 
• Smoke Free Environments Act 1990 
• Fire Service Act 1975 
• Local Government Act 2002 and Bylaws 
• Fair Trading Act 1986 
• Consumer Guarantees Act 1993 
• Privacy Act 1993 
• Sale of Goods Act 1908 
• Gambling Act 2003 
• Employment Relations Act 2000 
• The Holidays Act 2003 
• Human Rights Act 1993 
• Financial Reporting Act 2013 
• Income Tax Act 2007 and other Income Tax Legislation 
• Goods and Services Tax Act 1985 
• Commerce Act 1986 
• Injury Prevention, Rehabilitation and Compensation Act 2001 
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( 

!Atlachment4.1 WATS Board Salary Approval 
DISCLOSED PURSUANT TO LGOIMA 
NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION 

Redactions under section 7(2)(h) and (j) of LGOIMA; Protection of commercial information to 
enable to conduct of commercial activity without prejudice and to ensure that official Information 
is not used for Improper gain or advantage. Redactions also made to protect the privacy of 
natural persons in accordance with the Privacy Act 1993 and section 7{2)(a) of LGOIMA. Some 
information has been further redacted in accordance with section 7(2)(1) of LGOIMA to enable 
without prejudice negotiations as to salaries. 

Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting 
held on Tuesday 26 June 2018 

CLOSED MEETING 

PRESENT: 

IN ATTENDANCE: 

APOLOGIES 

Mrs L Cooper JP 
Ms LAdams 
Mr W Flaunty QSM 
Mr S Henderson 
Mrs P Hulse 
MrJ Riddell 
Mr S Tollestrup 

Mr B Corban CNZM, QSO 
MrSWlckham 

There were no apologies. 

/ MATTERS ARISING/ ACTION SCHEDULE 

President - Chair 

WATS Board Chair 
WATS CEO 

It was noted that the only item on the Action Schedule was not yet due. 

CORRESPONDENCE 

There was no correspondence. 

Page 3 

(LC) 
(LA) 
(WFJ 
{SH) 
(PH} 
(JR) 
(ST} 

giving back 
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( 

WATS Directors' Remuneration 

( 

Page4 

J Riddell / L Cooper 
Carried - --- ---

1 ' 
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Attachment4.2 PLT Minutes re WATS Board 
Salary package 

DISCLOSED PURSUANT TO LGOIMA 
NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION 

Redactions under section 7(2)(h) and (j) of LGOIMA: Protection of commercial 
information to enable to conduct of commercial activity without prejudice and to 
ensure that official information is not used for improper gain or advantage. Redactions 
also made to protect the privacy of natural persons in accordance with the Privacy Act 
1993 and section 7(2)(a) of LGOJMA. Some information has been further redacted in 
accordance with section 7(2)(1) of LGOIMA to enable without prejudice negotiations as 
to salaries. 

PORTAGE LICENSING TRUST 

Minutes of the Ordinary Trust Meeting 
Held on Monday 30 July 2018· 

At Bricklane Restaurant & Bar, 5 Clark Street, New Lynn 
Commencing p.t 8.21 pm 

CLOSED MEETING 

PRESENT: 

IN ATTENDANCE: 

Mr R Clow President - Chair 
Mr A Chand JP 
Mrs J Clews CNZM, QSO, JP 
Ms S Coney QSO 
Mr P Davie 
Ms C Farmer 
Mr N Henderson 
Ms L Taylor 
Ms M Watson 

WATS Board Chair 

g1vmg back 

(RC) 
(AC} 
{JC} 
(SC) 
(PD) 
(CF) 
{NH) 
(LT) 
(MW) 

Mr B Corban CNZM, QSO 
Mr T Livingstone MNZM 
MrSWickham 

WATS Remuooration Committee Chair 
WATS CEO 

APOLOGIES 

There were no apologies. 

3 
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( 1 

( : 

7.1 WATS Directors' Remuneration 
--- - --~ - - --

- - - --

The WATS Remuneration Committee Chair, T Livingstone , provided an outline of the paper and 
summary of recommendation . 

MW thanked T Livingstone for the comprehensive report which made her more comfortable with 
the review recommendations . · 

4 
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J Clews/ P Davie 

( ' 



176

-- ~ ..,,, ,.. 
!Attachment 4.3: Approved Package by WLT and PLTI · 

DISCLOSED PURSUANT TO LGOIMA 
NOT FOR PUBLIC DISTRIBUTION 

Background: 

increase 
resulting in an overa 
that recommended 

West Auckland Trust Services Ltd 

Director's Remuneration 

Directors Fee Review 2017: 

The Remuneration Committee had Strategic Pay complete a review of Director's fees in August 2017. 
Strategic Pay source their market data from New Zealand director's fee survey that includes 2836 
individual directorships from 363 organisations. The data is reported as at 1st February 2017. 
Strategic Pay's recommendation are attached on Appendix I and summarised as follows: 

Total Director's Fee Pool: 

Current Fees 

Strategic Pays: (Apprendix 1) 
Recommendation 

Modified Recommendation 

Recommendation: 

% Increase 

329,595 

460,825 39% 

412,253 25% 

% Based on 
like for like 

*** 

21% 

21% 

That the Board recommends the Strategic Pay recommendation on Director's fees be received and 
recommended to each trust for adoption as outlined on Appendix 1.. 
Redactions under section 7(2)(h) and U) of LGOIMA : Protection of commerc ial 
information to enable to conduct of commercial activity without prejudice and to ensure 
that official information is not used for Improper gain or advantage. Redactions also 
made to protect the privacy of natural persons in accordance with the Privacy Act 1993 
and section 7(2)(a) of LGOIMA. Some Information has been further redacted In 
accordance with section 7(2)(1) of LGOIMA to enable without prejudice negotiations as 
to salaries. 
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... 
" . ". 

f' • 

Attachment 4.3: Approved Package by WLTand PLT 

Redactions under section 7(2)(a) and (I} of LGOIMA to protect privacy of natural 
persons and commercial information 

West Auckland Trust Services ltd 

Current 

Director's Remuneration Recommendation 

Number Recommended 
Strategic Pay 

"'"'** 

Modified Strategic 
Pay Recommendation 

*** Approved by PLT and WLT 

$412 1 253 Approved by 
PLT and WL'f 
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!Attachment 5: List of p1operUes owned by PLT and WLT 

Client Property Known As CMtned or Luied u .. Occupied bylkendnrTrust 
Port aae Llcen.slngTrust 5 Clark5treet , New Lynn BrkklaneRestauran l & Bu Leased Hospitallty v .. 
Portag e Licensing Trust 8-12 Todd Avenue, New Lynn Blacksalt Bar and Eatery Leased Hospitality Ye, 

Port•e Llcendn1Trust Shop 2&3, KelstonShopplngCentre: Workshop Bar and Eatery Lu.std Hospltall ty v .. 
Portage llcensin& Trust 3 Captai n Scott Road, Glen £den West Liquor - Glen Eden leased Retall y., 

Portaa:e licensing Trust 82A litirangl Road, New Lynn W~t Liquor- New Lynn West leased Retall y., 
Por tqellcenslng Trust 58BGodley Road, Green Day W~t Liquor-Green Bay Leased Retall y., 
Portag e licensing Trust 4055 Great North Road, Kehton West Liquor• K~ston leased Retall Yes 
PortagelicflllingTrust 402 lltrangl Road, lilira ngl lltlrangi Village Wine & Spirits L,...d Retail v., 
Portage Licensing Trust 527A81ockhouse Day Road, Blocl<house Bay West Liquor- Blockhouse Bay Leased Retail y., 
Portage LlcenslnaTrurt 421 Titlranai Rd, lltlra ngl Iii Bar and Eatery leased Hospltallty Yes 
Portage llce nslng Trust Unit N, 3 Red HIiis Road, Mas.sey West Liquor -Red HIiis leased Relal! v .. 
Portage Licensing Trust 1167 -1177 New North Rd Pak ' NSave Mt AJbert Wlne:Shop l Nw d Relall Ye< 
Portage Licensing Trust 20 17-2021 Great North Road, Avondale West liquor - Avondale Owned & Occupied Relall Yes 
Portage licensing Trust 20 17-2021 Great Nort h Road, Avondale TheTaphouse Bar Owned & Occupied Hosplla llty Ye< 
Portage licensi ng Trust 211 Richardson Road, Mt Roskill Surplus Owned & LHwd Out Hospltallty No 
Portage licensi ng Trust 3044 Great North Road, New Lynn Wert Liquor - New Lynn Central owned & occupied Retail y., 

Porta,:e llcenslnc Trust 3044 Great North Road, New Lynn WATS Head Office owned & Occupied Commercial Office v., 
Portage licensing Trust 3044 Great North Road, New Lynn BP2Go New Lynn Owned & Lea~ Out ServfceStatlon No 
Portage Licensing Trust 3044 Great NOfth Road, New Lynn J'sAutolmport5 owned & le.i sed out lndus lrlal No 
Port age Licensing Trust 3032 Great North Road, New Lynn WA15StaffCar Park owned & Occupied CuP.irk y., 

Portage llcet1slng Trust 4026 Great North Road, Kelston SupetcheapAuto • Kelston ONned & leased Out Retail No 
Waltakere lkensin1Trust Unit 2, WestcateShopplngCentre Miu Q's Bar Le;i,sed Hospitality v., 
Waltake re llcerisingTrust 138 Royal Road, Royal Heights Centre , Massey We.rt Liquor• Royal Heights Leased Retail v .. 
Waltal<ere Ucensln1 Trust 4/288 TeAtatu Road, TeAtatuSouth All seasons - TeAlatu leased Retail v.. 
Waltakere Licensing Trust 705 Swan son Road, Swanson Swanson Village Wine & Spirits leased Retail y., 

Waltakere licensi ng Trust Unit F, 396 Don Buck Road, M.issey Wm Liquor• Massey L,. ,ed Retail Ye, 

Waltakere licensing Trurt 41 Hendetson Valley Road, Henderson West liquo r - Valley Road Leased Retail Vos 
Waltakere Licensi ng Trust 111 llncoln Road, Henderson West liquo r -Lincoln Centre l eased Relall Y•< 
Waitakere Licensing Trust We.rtsateShoppl n,:Cen lre, Shop 2C West Liquor - Westgate Centre leased Relail Yes 
Waltakere Licensing Trust 124 Hobsonvllle Rd, Hobsonvl lle West Liquor• Hobsonvllle Leased Re.tall v .. 
Waltakere l kenslns Trust 9 Red HIiis Road, Massey We.rt liquor• Red HIiis leas ed Retail v .. 
Waltake re lkensin1 Trust The Point, 571 TeAtatu Road, TeAtatu TeAtatu Village Wine& Spirits L .. ..d Retall v., 
Waltakere licensing Trust The Point, 571 TeAtatu Road, TeAtatu Mt lllln1swo r1h l .. ...t Hospitali ty Yes 
Waltakere Lkenslns Trust Shop 226 , 7 CatherineS treet , Henderson West.City Village Wine & Spirits l....,d Reta\l y., 
Waltakere lkl!flslns Trust ~5 centraa 1-'ark Drive, Henderson Western Mechanical owned & Leased Out Retail Ye< 
Waita kere llcensin1 Trust 95 Central Park Drive, Henderson Central Park Village Wine & Spirits Owned & Occupied Retail Yes 
Waitakere llcl!flslngTrust 118 Hobsonvllle Ro.id, Hobsonvllle Wert Harbour VIiiage Wine& Spirits O.vned & occupied Retail y., 

Waltakere Licensing Trurt 268Swanso n Road, Heoderson West liquo r- Wests ide CMnitd & Occupied Retall v .. 
Waltake re licensing Trust 1/3 Cellar Court, Westgate West Uquor-CellarCourt owned & Occupied Retall Ye, 
Waltakere Llcensin1 Trust 3 Pringle Road, TeAtalu Peninsula TeAtatu Tavern Owned & Occupied Hospl tallty Ye< 
Waitakere lkfflsi na T,u st 126 Rallslde Ave, Henderson West Uquor - Rallslde ONned & Occupied Retall Yes 
Waltakere licensing Trust 104 Central Park Drive, Hendenon The Hangar Oar Dwned & Occupied Hospitality Yu 
Walt akerellcensingTrust 159 Lincoln Road, Henderson West liqu or - Lincoln Green Owned & Occupied Retall v .. 
WaltakerellcemlngTrust 1S9 llncoln Road, Henderson Good Home-UncolnGre,en Owned & occ upied Hospllallty v .. 
Waltakere Licensing Tru.st 159 llncoln Road, Hendeuon Conference Centre Dwned & Occupied Commercial Yu 
Wallak ere Licensing Trust 1S9 lincoln Road, Henderson Quallly Inn Hotel Dwned & Occupied Hotel Ye< 
Waitakere Licensing Trust 226-228 Great North Road, Glend ene: Wl!it llquor - Glendene Owntd & Occupied Retall Ye< 
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a,vmg Back 
Our core purpose is Giving Back to West Auckland. We help all kinds of people, 
local clubs, and associations in the community by giving grants, donations, sponsorships, 
rebates, and household items. As a community-focused organisation, we're always 
happy to hear suggestions on ways we can improve. 

owned and operated by West Auckland 
We take our position seriously to ensure we always act In a socially responsible manner 
by not selling to minors or opening up too many stores which is better for our community. 
Our elected members are elected by you to help us Give Back in ways that are relevant and 
make a difference in our community. Many of our staff ;;,e locals and are fully engaged 

in our business and community with great career paths. 

Liquor 
The Trusts sells alcohol in West Auckland through the West Liquor and Village Wine ft Spirits 
stores and invests profits back into community projects or community•owned business. 
Unlike big supermarkets our profits don't go to private owners or shareholders. 

Entertamment 
We aim to run au our venues competitively and to a high standard. Whether you're 
dining out or entertaining at home, every time you visit our bars, restaurants and liquor 
stores you're supporting the community. 

hat wedo 

Retail Investments e Hosp1tallty 
We own a number of excellent 
bars and restaurants In West Auckland 
that offer something for everyone. 

Our industry-leading stores are some of 
the best in the countiy, with a large 
range of specialty beers, quality spirits, 
and fine wines from around the world. 

We wisely invest our profits to grow 
our community owned investment base 
over the long term. 

Our Goals: 
Operate a number of profitable, 
modern venues in West Aucldand, 
and open establishments in new 

entertainment developments. 

Recruit and retain industry-leading 
managers and develop people who 
are passionate about hospitality. 

Our Goals: 
Maximise retail opportunities through a 
network of conveniently located stores 
that best service our customers. 

Develop outstanding results for 
the business and people through 
our retail leadership programme. 

for more information v1s1t thetrusts.co.nz 

Our Goals: 
To bu!ld a balanced portfolio of high 
performing and strategic assets that 
maximise our ability to give back more. 

g1vmg back 
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What we do will benefit the community through donations. 
rebates. sponsorship and household dIstnbutIons 

Group Services 
Support Office 
Purchasmg,Supply Cham; Marketing; People and Culture: 
Finance & Business Intel; Retail Leadership: Hosp1tallty Leadership; 
ExecutIve1WATS Board 

For more information v1s1t thetrusts.co.nz g1vmg back 
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jAttachmoot 6.2: Business Strategy_Retall l 
Redactions under section 7(2}(hl of 
lGOIMA: Enable tho Trusts to carry out 
without prejudice, commercial activities 

Business Strategy: Retail 
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.... ·F--... -_-• --- -- ~ --- - - 0. • • -- - •-:--. 

Total Business Revi1ew .. " : 
. -- • . . . . . - - .J 

A comprehensive review of The Trusts business - forming a Business Plan & 
Strategic Direction - "the transformation" 

• Finance 

• Advocacy/protection of existing trading rights 

• Operations - Hospitality & Retail 

• Human Resources 

• Systems/ IT 

• Property 

• Sales & Marketing 

• Warehousing & Distribution 

• Supplier Review 
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New logo design 

giving back 
• Engaging and friendly 

• Modern, contemporary, professional look 

• Relates clearly to West Auckland 

• States clear benefit of The Trusts 
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' '- -..•--:-. -~··--- . ~-_, _, ----~:,.,_.~·•r.• 

Retail Brand Evaluatio .n · -
. . 
' . - ------ ------ --- - -· .,.____ __ - ~ 



185

Sales Revenue (SM) Net Contribution (SM) 

200.9 2012 2009 2012 

II Portage Iii Waitakere Source: Financial Information 2009 ACT, 20-12 FCST 
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-~~:--· ·- --,,.,?~---.~ .... -- - -,......-:·~~- ... 

Brand connections . <:· --·:· · . · ·· · ._·_.. ·. __ : I 
- . . ·. . - ' 

- ____ ,:___ .• ,: __ •• ~- • _ __ ---- -· .,- ~.,.___'""1· ·-~ 

The Tone and Personality for brands that appeal to West Auckland residents were 
clearly articulated through the research process. 

Regional / local focus - 'West' is better than National 

What does 'West' mean? 

Bush Toi Toi Blue Real 
Beach Flax Green Honest 
Sea Cabbage Tree Charcoal Welcoming 
Nature West Coast Natural Contempora ry 
Lifestyle Waitakere Ranges Proud 
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• Local is better, West is Best 

• Proud but not too flash 

• Engaging and friendly 

• Contemporary 

• Clear market positions 

• Clear association with The Trusts 

~-
~ West Liquor beer wme sp1r1ts 

• The 4 existing brands reduce to 2 ~Wane & Sp1r1ts 
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. -==-~-~·~~~ 
;:!'--:'- :_ •&i__ ;_-!'r -'-.,.:•11 .. •::.~ 

Retail brands that -a,re,. r~f~'l(aJn:ql,,me-i~fn'i'ng_ful· · -
- - - - - - --- - ----..-=-:-- -.-:- - - . - - - <.. 

·~-west Liquor beer wme spints 

Mainstream Liquor Retailing 

Colour palette graphical style 

Blue Sea, sky 

Green Grass, Bush 

Charcoal Black Sand 

t'!'T~l:l 
~ Concrete 

~~f~rf ,,::.J . ' \-. 

:1 ' 

~ Wine & Sp1nts 

Specialty - Wine led Liquor Retailing 

Colour palette 

Cream 

Sand 

Green Grass, Bush 

charcoal Black Sand 

■ Timher 

graphical style 
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Local liquor Glendene - current 
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And this ·- - . · · -----~------ ---· ~~----~~:~·:'.l 
- ---- - - - - . -- - - - -- - - -

Local Liquor Glendene · 
2012 



191



192

:~ - - >-- - ~. _____ .... _ ,~- • -..-1 

And this - -
- - - - - - - - - -- - -
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All Seasons 

~ Shop Front- 0tlftlng• EJe..aUon ~ -·· 

....... ~ 

-- -- -----------~...,-;.... ~ .. ------\~-~ - - ~;:;_·•,- r>'. ~1 
- -
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Kelston 
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Swanson 

-6:u_ ShopF,ont - Exitting- EhNatlon 
~ ..... ~ 1919 

... ~ ---- --~- T~ - •• - ---- .. _~ - ---; --

- - - \'\ 
--. \• 

·- - ' - - - -- -~- -",.,.J. 

--- - -- Concut,pw,p,I 

&isu!g u n,,p'tlulll huL 
SliN\l• ·•~limlNr wb-, ·-t, : 

&hllngalfl'llllllllllmllfl 
suliJht, . 

-~ + -- :.*!!:.ftn•I' onlirnh, 

P11b"=foo1P,atl\. 

~ .... , .. 
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• Sales Training ♦ 
• World Class Customer Care Training 

• Mystery Shopper 

• Merchandising 
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fl· ....... 
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~ . - . ._:--:(;-'~~ : .. ---· ..... --~► ... -~.,__~ 
Enhance comm uni cati on-;ttf d:a.r ~o·a riis'cto,\; ;~J-]] 

_ - -_ · ~'~-:.~:.2 ___ . -~ . ,··~~~¥1~-;~~ 

Letterbox Media 

• 16 page magazine 

• Focused content designed to 
drive foot traffic 

• Distribution to 
781000 
West Auckland 
households 

• Greater reach & 'cut through' 
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Attachment 6,3; Business Strategy, 
HospitaUty 

Redactions under section 7(l!Jlh) of 
l.GOIMAl Enable the Trusts to carry 

prejudice, commercial 
activities 
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Page layout 

Page showh is 
example of 
magazine format 
for Platinum 
adverts in 'Our 
West 1 magazine 

- ··-------~-

- - -- - -

: the back page 
on special from 19 May - 1st Ju!'le 

':0~1 West Liquor ~ \Mme fr Spmrots 

···-----·- ·- ·--·- - ·-· ·-- --- ·--
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Mission Statement 
.. 

. \ :_-·' .//\: 

.;./ :;}} i~: ;.i}.:,:>if:/i-'.;::.,:':·:~:.,/I~ 

. \'' R€1iv~~~~~C€Ptipf\~.l'~)(pf H€.!1S~*,ct6 ' vr\f a;z,iif fr. 
•·•··• ............................. •.· .. a.n.~•·•·•~•.nt.~.rtainni.E=p.t .. AP··l/!E=.st ..• Auc..~lan ..... ·.• .. •·.·.···• ... •.•·· ..... mP1~1.ni.ti 

·• ··· .... ··. ·····•···.••·· ....... · ... · .....••. •i• .. ·.: ..... •.\.·••Mi.§i.tQ.rs\xi,.it·a:.Q.~trvQrk•.•·of.••PrQfi .. tgl:>l~.hgs·pi·•···•·ati.·. 
· ... . . . . . . ... .. ... ~11~, \I . ljrtf < 
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Future: Venue Mix 
Hospitality venues have evolved over the last 20 years with the definition between a 
tavern and restaurant now increasingly blurred . 

Modern venues are often characterised by their ability to "shape shift", that is change 
to meet the need states of customers at several different occasions. 

But what does this really mean? 
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Future 
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Future 
Its your local- socialise within your community. Watch the big game with mates in 
comfort, have a punt on the horses or gaming, or just grab a quality value meal. 
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Current State: 
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Why stay in hospitality? 
Engagement 
• Community has strong connection to where they socialise 

• Job creation within West Auckland 

• Staff become positive advocates within the community 

• Better social outcomes from sale of alcohol than many smaller operators who are 

held to a lower level of scrutiny-CPO results vs South Auckland 
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Transformation: 
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Transformation: Operating systems 

• Cloud based operating and dashboard system enabling closer insight into sales, stock, GP 
and labour cost 

• Implement rolling 90 day plans including marketing ft promotional activity, key focus, 
venue development and HR 

• Develop annual schedule of venue improvements to ensure venue is staying relevant and is 
constantly evolving 

• Review of offering; menu, ranging, entertainment 

• Customer experience systems such as "order of service" 

• Time capture and roster system 

2000 2015 



211


